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Forward-Looking Statements
Statements made in this Annual Report with 
respect to Hitachi High-Technologies’ plans, 
strategies and future performance are forward-
looking statements based on management’s 
assumptions and beliefs in light of the information 
currently available, and involve risks and uncer-
tainties. Accordingly, actual performance may 
differ materially from expectations due to a range 
of factors including, but not limited to, changes in 
the Company’s operating environment.

Editorial Policy
Hitachi High-Technologies has opted to publish 
this Annual Report solely on its corporate website. 
This report is considered a useful communication 
tool for promoting understanding of the Com-
pany’s management policies and business strate-
gies among a broad readership encompassing 
both individual and institutional investors. 
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User Guide

The Hitachi High-Technologies Corporate Vision

To Consistently Aim to Be Global Top in 
High-Tech Solutions

This PDF allows you to find information and navigate around this document more easily. 

It also links you to useful information on the Web that is not part of this Annual Report.

Hitachi High-Technologies Corporation aims to be a successful enterprise 
trusted by all our stakeholders and contributing to social progress through 
business activities that emphasize value creation through high-tech solutions. 
We are committed to open, transparent, and reliable business practices. As we 
continue to grow, we will value the environment and strive to build a 
prosperous community, fulfilling our social responsibility and contributing as a 
corporate citizen with passion and pride in our work.

This basic philosophy is the foundation of our corporate vision, a vision that 
defines our future directions and articulates concepts that all our employees 
should share and emulate. 
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Introduction

 Corporate Vision

Business Policy
   To place the customer first, growing with our customers by providing the best solutions, 
consistently a step ahead of market needs. 

  To contribute to value creation in the global community through synergies between our 
strengths in cutting-edge technologies and our capabilities as an established trading 
company. 

  To aim for reliability and excellence based on our core assets of talent and technical 
resources, and to maximize our corporate value. 

Management Policy
  To aggressively disclose information and conduct business in a highly transparent manner. 
 To exercise social responsibility as an environmentally aware corporate citizen. 
 To conduct legally and ethically sound business activities. 

Corporate Culture Policy
  To respect the abilities of every employee and inspire confidence to tackle new challenges. 
 To build a vibrant, enterprising company that is open to new ideas. 
 To encourage speedy and efficient performance through teamwork. 
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History of Hitachi High-Technologies

Hitachi, Ltd.   R&D and Manufacturing

  Instruments Group: Always at the leading edge of progress in measurement technologies

  Semiconductor Manufacturing Equipment Group:  Expertise in high-density circuit integration and 
miniaturization

Nissei Sangyo Co., Ltd.    Trading

  Trading functions: Specializing in cutting-edge technology, primarily in the field of electronics

  Skill in building new businesses: Supported by a worldwide network

Sanyo High Technology Co., Ltd.   R&D and Manufacturing

  Chip Mounter Business:  Embodying outstanding productivity and quality

Hitachi Electronics Engineering Co., Ltd.   R&D and Manufacturing

  FPD and HD-related Equipment: Integrating expertise in technology and product development

  Optical Semiconductor Inspection Equipment:  Vital to the commercial-scale production of  
next-generation devices

Renesas Eastern Japan Semiconductor, Inc.  R&D and Manufacturing

  Die Bonders: Boasting high-speed and precision

Business Expansion through M&A/Alliance

Organic Growth

Hitachi High-Technologies is developing a 
distinct business model derived from the 
integration of its trading and 
manufacturing functions.

Hitachi High-Tech leverages specialized trading functions 
active across the globe together with manufacturing 
functions that enable the development of high-tech 
products through cutting-edge technologies. Backed by this 
distinct business model integrating manufacturing, sales 
and services, Hitachi High-Tech delivers optimal solutions.

Company Overview

Oct. 2001  Establishment of Hitachi High-Technologies Corporation

Apr. 2003  Business Integration

Mar. 2004  Business Integration

Apr. 2010  Business Integration

Introduction

 Company Overview
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 Process Equipment

 Metrology & Inspection Equipment

 Back-end & Assembly Equipment

 and others

 FPD Manufacturing Equipment

 HD Manufacturing Equipment

 and others

 Electron Microscopes

 Analytical Instruments

 Biotechnology Products

 Clinical Analyzers

 and others

 LIB Assembly Systems

 Automotive HDDs

 IT Solutions

 Control Systems

 and others

 Industrial Materials

 Optical-related Components

 Electronic Devices and Materials

 Fine Chemicals

 and others

Global Network

(27 countries/56 locations)

Trading Company Functions

 Global Sales Capabilities

 Global Sourcing Capabilities

Manufacturer Functions

 Technology Development Capabilities

 Manufacturing Service Capabilities

Electronic Device Systems

Fine Technology Systems

Science & Medical Systems

Industrial & IT Systems

Advanced Industrial Products

Company Overview

Introduction

 Company Overview
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Consolidated Ten-Year Summary
Hitachi High-Technologies Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Years ended March 31, 2003–2012

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

Years ended March 31 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2012

For the year:

Net sales ¥ 778,229 ¥ 831,050 ¥ 936,865 ¥ 888,293 ¥ 951,619 ¥ 943,124 ¥ 774,950 ¥ 616,877 ¥ 653,431 ¥ 645,865 $7,858,189
Electronic Device Systems — — — — — — — — 95,899 102,386 1,245,718
Fine Technology Systems — — — — — — — — 38,803 22,979 279,585
Science & Medical Systems — — — — — — — — 115,377 147,055 1,789,212
Industrial & IT Systems — — — — — — — — 118,206 121,687 1,480,555
Advanced Industrial Products — — — — — — — — 295,646 261,216 3,178,194
Others & Adjustments — — — — — — — — (10,500) (9,458) (115,075)

Operating profit (loss) 11,844 13,798 30,001 36,036 45,062 49,141 14,909 (1,626) 27,893 25,459 309,761
Net income (loss) 5,928 7,162 15,004 19,249 26,109 26,932 7,075 (2,827) 17,752 14,265 173,558
Cash flows from operating activities 18,284 14,989 26,000 15,700 24,805 30,743 31,056 22,371 20,916 43,453 528,690
Cash flows from investing activities 2,457 (531) (576) (9,578) (5,900) (6,393) (18,684) (8,277) 1,194 (25,203) (306,639)
Free cash flows 20,741 14,458 25,424 6,122 18,905 24,350 12,372 14,094 22,110 18,250 222,051
Cash flows from financing activities (10,818) (20,853) (21,582) (12,762) (4,009) (3,685) (9,306) (2,759) (2,949) (4,137) (50,332)

At the year-end:
Total assets ¥ 389,704 ¥ 462,875 ¥ 432,501 ¥ 457,837 ¥ 480,191 ¥ 504,873 ¥ 427,576 ¥ 411,049 ¥ 413,267 ¥ 442,162 $5,379,749
Total net assets 155,160 160,480 173,379 193,363 221,330 235,104 234,278 229,399 242,845 253,012 3,078,377
Cash and cash equivalents 52,456 44,648 48,967 43,600 59,267 77,853 79,628 90,188 107,704 121,598 1,479,479
Number of employees 8,073 10,043 9,868 9,974 10,234 10,477 10,508 9,931 10,100 10,340 —

Per share data (¥):
Net income (loss) ¥ 40.92 ¥ 50.56 ¥ 107.94 ¥ 139.24 ¥ 189.81 ¥ 195.80 ¥ 51.44 ¥ (20.55) ¥ 129.07 ¥ 103.71 $ 1.26
Net assets 1,125.60 1,164.99 1,259.18 1,404.96 1,572.14 1,707.69 1,701.74 1,666.00 1,764.66 1,837.84 22.36
Dividends 15.00 15.00 20.00 25.00 25.00 30.00 30.00 15.00 20.00 30.00 0.37

Ratio:
Operating profit ratio(%) 1.5 1.7 3.2 4.1 4.7 5.2 1.9 (0.3) 4.3 3.9 —
Equity ratio(%) 39.8 34.7 40.1 42.2 45.0 46.5 54.7 55.7 58.7 57.2 —
Return on equity (ROE) (%) 3.8 4.5 9.0 10.5 12.7 11.9 3.0 (1.2) 7.5 5.8 —
Return on assets (ROA) (%) 3.1 3.2 5.8 7.9 9.4 9.9 3.5 (0.1) 7.2 6.1 —
Price-earnings ratio (Times) 41.3 32.8 15.7 22.3 17.0 8.4 26.9 — 12.9 19.0 —

Notes: 1. U.S. dollar amounts in this report are translated from yen, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥82.19=U.S.$1.00.
 2. ROA is calculated by dividing ordinary income by total assets, and expressed as a percentage. (Ordinary income is income other than capital gains.)
 3.  From April 1, 2008, the Company has changed its revenue recognition criteria with regard to products such as semiconductor manufacturing equipment and LCD manufacturing equipment which require post-shipment installation.  

In principle, revenue is now recognized on completion of installation, rather than on shipment.
 4. Due to changes in accounting standards, previous segment classifications have been reclassified based on the Company’s recently formulated “Management Approach” from the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011. Refer to page 20 for sales trends based on prior segment classification.

Highlights

 Consolidated Ten-Year Summary
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  Total net assets
 ROE

Note: Total does not include “Others & Adjustments”

  Operating profit (loss)
 Operating profit ratio

  Total assets
 ROA

  Net income (loss)
 Net income (loss) per share

Key Performance Indicators

Operating Profit (Loss)/ 
Operating Profit Ratio
(Millions of yen/%)

 Electronic Device Systems 15.6
 Fine Technology Systems 3.5
 Science & Medical Systems 22.4
 Industrial & IT Systems 18.6
 Advanced Industrial Products 39.9

 Japan 42.4
 North America 12.9
 Europe 13.8
 Asia 28.6
 Other 2.3

Net Sales 

(Millions of yen)

Total Assets/ROA 

(Millions of yen/%)

Net Income (Loss)/ 
Net Income (Loss) per Share
(Millions of yen/Yen)

30.0 30.0

20.0

15.0

30.0

12111008 09

Total Net Assets/ROE 

(Millions of yen/%)

Segment Sales 

(%)

Dividends per Share 

(Yen)

Domestic and Overseas Sales 

(%)

Highlights

 Key Performance Indicators
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April 2011
• Executive Vice President and Executive Officer Masao Hisada 

appointed President and Chief Executive Officer
• Adoption of business group system
• Launched the SU9000, a new type of Field Emission Scanning 

Electron Microscope
• Received Intel Corporation’s Prestigious Supplier Continuous 

Quality Improvement (SCQI) award

May 2011
• Chairman of the Board Hidehito Obayashi Appointed Chairman 

of Semiconductor Equipment Association of Japan

June 2011
• Launched an explosion-proof wireless handy terminal that can 

be used in explosion-protected areas
• Established the Analyzer Development Center in Dalian

• Started sales of “ClearSea,” television-conference software for 
smartphones and mobile terminals, in cooperation with Hitachi 
High-Tech and Italy’s Logitec Mirial s.r.l.

September 2011
• Establishment of an overseas subsidiary in Indonesia

October 2011
• Announcement of Hitachi High-Tech Medium-term Management 

Plan 2013

November 2011
• Completed the Naka Division Design Building

December 2011
• Opened the Tokyo Solution Laboratory
• Launched the new CD-measurement SEM CG5000
• Launched a new high-speed die bonder for miniature microchips

January 2012
• Received the IEEE Milestone for Hitachi’s pioneering develop-

ment of the world’s first practical Field Emission Electron Micro-
scope in 1972

March 2012
• Launched the revamped Traveler’s WAN system for general 

expenses management

2012 Business Highlights (April 2011 – March 2012)

Vice President and Execu-
tive Officer Shinichi Tachi 
gives an acceptance speech 
for the SCQI award

This development center in 
Dalian (China) is the 
Group’s first overseas 
development site

Naka Division Design Building where research on seismic 
resistance, design innovation and eco-factories is conducted

Highlights

 2012 Business Highlights
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Topics

The Microscope That Changed the World  
FE Electron Microscope—IEEE Milestone—

Hitachi, Ltd. and Hitachi High-Technologies have received the 
IEEE Milestone for Hitachi’s pioneering development of the 
world’s “First Practical Field Emission Electron Microscope, 
1972” from the IEEE*1, the world’s largest professional associa-
tion in the electrical, electronics, information and communica-
tions engineering fields.

Established in 1983, the IEEE Milestone honors historical 
technical achievements from among innovations in the electri-
cal, electronics, information and communications 
engineering fields that have contributed substan-
tially to the advancement of society and industry. 
The IEEE Milestone is awarded only after at least 
25 years have passed since the relevant techno-
logical development.

In 1969, Hitachi began developing field emission 
(FE) electron beam source technology. In just three 
years, Hitachi successfully developed an FE-SEM*2 
by creating practical FE technology. Since then, for 
more than 40 years, Hitachi’s FE technology has 
been used in high-resolution SEMs and TEMs*3 in 
a wide range of fields such as biology, materials 
science, and semiconductors. It has greatly con-
tributed to the advancement of science, medicine 
and industry around the world.

Under the slogan of “Seeing the Invisible,” 
 Hitachi’s FE-SEM has proven highly popular 
among customers around the world for its reliability 
and ease of operation. Today, the Hitachi name is 
associated with FE-SEM worldwide. The IEEE 
Milestone puts the crowning touch on the FE-SEM’s 
shining track record. Indeed, it is no exaggeration 

Message

Hitachi, Ltd. and Hitachi High-Technologies are greatly hon-

ored to receive the prestigious IEEE Milestone for the “First 

Practical Field Emission Electron Microscope, 1972.” Hitachi 

High-Tech was formed through the merger in 2001 of Nissei 

Sangyo Co., Ltd., a Hitachi Group trading company special-

izing in cutting-edge technology, and the Instruments Group 

and Semiconductor Manufacturing Equipment Group of 

 Hitachi, Ltd. From the times of our forerunners, our history has 

been inseparable from the development of electron micros-

copy in Japan over the past 70 years. This honorable IEEE 

Milestone recognizes our tireless efforts to improve analytical 

technologies using electron microscopes. I would like to take 

this opportunity to express my profound gratitude to the 

university professors and other experts who have advised us, 

as well as to our customers for using our products to this day.

We will continue to harness the global business creation 

expertise of Hitachi High-Tech, as well as the overall strength 

of the Hitachi Group, to contribute to the advancement of 

 science, technology, and industry going forward.

to say that FE electron microscope has been used to reveal 
answers that change the world.

*1 IEEE (pronounced “eye-triple-E”): Headquartered in the U.S.A., the Institute of 
Electrical and Electronics Engineers is the world’s largest professional association of 
electrical, electronic, information, and communication engineers, with more than 
400,000 members in 160 countries worldwide.

*2 FE-SEM: Field Emission-Scanning Electron Microscope
*3 TEM: Transmission Electron Microscope

1972 Pioneering development of world’s first practical FE-SEM
President and  

Chief Executive Officer

Masao Hisada

Highlights

 Topics

08Hitachi High-Technologies  Annual Report 2012

http://www.hitachi-hitec.com/ieee/en/


To Our Stakeholders

Continuing the Challenge to 
Expand Global Value
Hitachi High-Technologies Corporation marked the 10th anniversary of its 

foundation in October 2011 by launching its new long-term management 

strategy “Corporate Strategy 2011 (CS11)” for the next ten years.

The environment surrounding the Hitachi High-Tech Group continues to be 

extremely challenging as well as difficult to forecast. However, with the goal 

of achieving our corporate vision of becoming the global top in high-tech 

solutions, we will quickly implement the strategies of “CS11” and leverage 

Group teamwork as we continue to strive to achieve sustainable growth 

exceeding that of the overall market.

Masao Hisada
President and Chief Executive Officer

 To Our Stakeholders

President’s Message
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FY2011: A Year Impacted by a Challenging Market Environment
Fiscal 2011 was a really challenging year highlighted by a number of challenging events, including 

the lingering impact of the Great East Japan Earthquake, financial instability in Europe, the apprecia-

tion of the yen, and the flooding in Thailand. In fiscal 2011, both sales and profits declined versus the 

previous fiscal year. We posted consolidated net sales of ¥645.9 billion (down 1.2% year on year), 

operating profit of ¥25.5 billion (down 8.7%), and net income of ¥14.3 billion (down 19.6%).

By business segment, Electronic Device Systems posted an increase in sales while operating 

profit decreased versus the previous year. Etching systems and CD-Measurement SEMs performed 

well, while there was a slight decline in sales of chip mounters due to the impact of the flooding in 

Thailand. There was a significant decline in sales of die bonders, attributable to the downturn in the 

memory market in Asia.

Fine Technology Systems was significantly affected by market trends, leading to a net loss for the 

segment. There was a considerable decline in sales of FPD manufacturing equipment as a result of a 

decline in profits by LCD panel manufacturers. Similarly, there was a large drop in HD manufacturing 

equipment caused by industry consolidation and the flooding in Thailand.

Meanwhile, Science & Medical Systems posted a significant year on year increase in both sales 

and operating profit, as sales of scientific instruments grew as a result of the strong sales of new 

equipment, particularly electron microscopes, and the biotechnology products/clinical analyzers 

business posted a large increase in sales, especially to overseas markets.

Industrial & IT Systems posted year on year gains in both sales and operating profit. Although 

sales of automated assembly systems were low due to the decline in capital investment stemming 

from the downturn in the electronic devices market, and sales of hard disk drive-related products fell 

significantly due to supply chain problems triggered by the Great East Japan Earthquake and the 

flooding in Thailand, there was a major increase in sales of communications-related equipment, 

attributable to the launch of new mobile phone models for the U.S. market.

Advanced Industrial Products recorded an unavoidable year on year decline in both sales and 

operating profit. In addition to the considerable decline in sales of products for LCD TVs, there was a 

large drop in sales of silicon wafers and LCD-related products, stemming from the production stop-

pages by customers and business partners caused by the earthquake, as well as the downturn in 

demand for products. Moreover, the dip in demand from the Chinese market caused sales of compo-

nents for optical-related components to decline.

The Naka Division, where our mainstay products are manufactured, was hit hard by the Great East Japan 

Earthquake, which in turn had a major impact on our operating performance in fiscal 2011. However, the 

support of our customers and business partners, along with the tremendous effort shown by all Group 

employees, enabled us to quickly restore operations and minimize the impact on operating performance.

Accelerating the Expansion of High-Growth Businesses
Monetary easing and other measures by countries throughout the world have led to a slight reduction 

of the risk of a double-dip recession during fiscal 2012. The Hitachi High-Tech Group will complete 

the business restructuring begun in fiscal 2011, and continue to promote initiatives aimed at further 

advances. However, we expect the business environment to remain murky, as the fiscal instability in 

Europe becomes prolonged, the yen remains strong, and the recession hits the economies of China 

and other emerging countries. Consequently, in fiscal 2012 we expect net sales to increase 2% year 

on year to ¥660.0 billion, while we look for operating profit to improve by 18%, to ¥30.0 billion.

Our management policy for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2013 has three elements:

1   Strengthen the business portfolio by shifting resources to growing fields

2   Act globally—Expand and accelerate global business by focusing on target regions

3  Create new business by accelerating research and development

In Electronic Device Systems, we expect the device market to grow in tandem with the increase in 

demand for smartphones and other mobile devices. As this occurs, we expect the three major semi-

conductor device manufacturers to each take an aggressive approach towards capital investment in 

process equipment and metrology & inspection equipment. We will work to increase sales by provid-

ing customers with the products they need in a timely manner. In back-end process & assembly 

equipment, we are developing new chip mounters as well as competitive new die bonders, which we 

believe will allow us to increase our market share.

In Fine Technology Systems, despite the expected decline in FPD manufacturing equipment sales 

in conjunction with the ongoing weakness in the LCD panel-related equipment market, investment in 

HD manufacturing equipment is likely to resume as industry consolidation reaches a lull, and we aim to 

engineer a rebound in sales by introducing new products. After several years of developing organic 

 To Our Stakeholders

President’s Message
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light emitting diode (OLED) manufacturing equipment, this year we will solidly launch this business. We 

will also shift resources not only to the OLED business, but also to other areas such as the printable 

electronics field, and otherwise proactively work to start up new businesses.

In Science & Medical Systems, we will enhance cutting-edge application development in order to 

increase sales in scientific instruments. In June 2011, we established an analyzer development 

center in Dalian, China, marking our first overseas development facility, and thereby put in place a 

platform to handle the demand from 

emerging markets, including an inte-

grated system that covers development 

through to production. 

In biotechnology products/clinical 

analyzers, we are working with an over-

seas partner to expand sales of large-

and medium-sized clinical chemistry and 

immunodiagnostic analyzers as well as 

launch sales of DNA sequencers in the 

clinical laboratory testing field.

The trading divisions will continue to 

focus on target fields for the Group 

namely social innovation as well as envi-

ronmental and new energy. In April 2012, 

we merged Hitachi High-Tech Trading 

Corporation, a Group company primarily 

involved in industrial measuring systems, 

with Hitachi High-Tech Solutions Corpo-

ration, engaged primarily in the sale of 

measurement device-related software. 

With this merger, we will provide clients 

with solutions based on a complete 

platform spanning products to software.

* A scheme for advancing “C (Challenge/Corporate) projects” that hold potential to be future earnings pillars for the Hitachi High-Tech Group, 
and that lie outside of the framework of the Company’s existing businesses. Specifically, these are projects that harness the synergies 
between trading divisions and the Company’s own product divisions in business fields that the Company wants to develop. Alternatively, the 
scheme also targets projects that are best carried out through the efforts of the entire Company due to scale or development timeframes.
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Fine Technology Systems

+12% Electronic Device Systems

+50% Electronic Device Systems
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Advancing Our Strengths to Increase Added Value
The Hitachi High-Tech Group has initiated its Long-Term Management Strategy CS11 aimed at accel-

erating our growth strategy, boosting our market presence, and realizing our corporate vision of being 

the Global Top in high-tech solutions over the next decade. Since the Company’s founding in 2001, 

our business environment has changed considerably, including the globalization of the market and the 

evolution of technologies. During this time, we have carried out business integrations with other compa-

nies and bolstered our business base, which has involved efforts to build a balanced product portfolio 

that is ahead of changes in the market, as well as pursuing a unique business model as a trading com-

pany. Based on this underpinning, we view the upcoming decade as a time for new challenges, and will 

strive to achieve further growth.

Given our strengths, we have chosen 

to focus on the following four fields where 

growth is expected: next-generation 

electronics, life sciences, environment 

and new energy, and social innovation. 

Currently, electronics-related businesses 

account for more than two-thirds of our 

overall sales, but in the run-up to fiscal 

2020 we will enhance our business port-

folio in order to turn the other three fields 

into strong pillars of our business for the 

years ahead.

The engine that will drive this forward is Hitachi High-Tech’s unique “business creation” expertise 

based on twin functional capabilities as a manufacturer and a trading company.

One of Hitachi High-Tech’s strengths is our ability to deliver diverse solutions by fusing our manu-

facturer and trading company functions together to develop systems for our own products, including 

those gained from trading. We hope to hone these capabilities further going forward, leveraging this 

unrivaled capacity for “business creation” as a one-stop solution for generating new business. In 2009, 

we launched a new business creation initiative scheme*, and already a number of projects are headed 

toward commercialization. Such projects include drug manufacturing research support (solutions for 

YoY
+2%

YoY
+18%

Note:  Eliminations such as subtractions in intersegment transactions, etc., 
are included in the totals.

Note:  The above four business fields differ from the Company’s reportable 
segments for accounting purposes.

Note:  Eliminations such as subtractions in intersegment transactions, etc., 
are included in the totals.

FY2012 Outlook
(Sales by segment)
(100 million yen)

FY2012 Outlook
(Operating profit (loss) by segment)
(100 million yen)

Sales Composition by Field

FY2010 FY2020 Target

Next-generation 
electronics

Life 
sciences

Environment and 
new energy

Social 
innovation
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new drug manufacturing processes), social infrastructure analysis solutions (portable mass spectrom-

eter developed to support illicit drug investigations ), coating and deposition solutions (total solutions 

for equipment, raw materials, and manufacturing processes), streaming platforms (support service 

using big data analysis), and the solar cell business (environment and new energy business from 

development of applications of globular solar cells). Going forward, the development and manufactur-

ing divisions will work together to accelerate these initiatives.

Another important key to the Company’s growth will be the stable procurement of a wide variety of 

products and materials. The Hitachi High-Tech Group has 56 overseas business bases located in 27 

countries. Beginning in April 2012, collaboration with the Hitachi Group will be further enhanced, and 

we will proactively pursue business activities as the Hitachi Group’s trading company. We want to con-

tribute by serving as a template for Hitachi Group companies expanding their businesses overseas, 

and by broadening global procurement capabilities that will bolster the Hitachi Group’s competitiveness.

Increasing Global Dynamism by Firmly Entrenching  
the Hitachi High-Tech WAY
The Hitachi High-Tech WAY embodies the corporate vision, CS11, and the Hitachi High-Tech SPIRIT. 

The Hitachi High-Tech Group conducts business activities in an integrated manner based on this set 

of principles. The Hitachi High-Tech SPIRIT includes the four important values of “Challenge,” 

“Openness,” “Speed,” and “Teamwork,” extracted through the activities of employees. We aim to 

achieve growth as a true CSR company by sharing and putting into practice the Group’s philosophy, 

values and strategies, to enable us to provide maximum value to customers.

For example, we reformed the organization, adopting a new business structure for each segment 

in April 2011. Marketing, development, design, production and sales and services have all been 

incorporated under a single business group headed by a general manager. This has resulted in an 

organization where strategy sharing and decision-making can connect almost instantly. At the same 

time, we also established Corporate Marketing Groups that all marketing teams fall under, and a 

Corporate Manufacturing Strategy Group that draws together production teams from all business 

segments. The reason for doing away with barriers within each business and merging once separate 

marketing and production team personnel was to encourage flexible ideas based on a broad perspective. 

Technology Development
Global Sales and Procurement
Manufacturing and Services

Environment and  
New Energy

Life Sciences

Next-generation
Electronics

Social Innovation

• Biochemical 
analysis

• Immunodiag-
nostic analysis

•  DNA 
sequencers

• Industrial materials
• Electronic 
materials 

• Automated 
assembly 
equipment 

•Front-end semiconductor process
• Back-end semiconductor process
• LCD  • HDD

• Optical/electron beam application systems
• Instrumentation systems
•Procurement solutions    •Railway measurement

Target Fields

Strengths of our company × Growth markets = Promising business territories

 To Our Stakeholders
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I believe that such organic ties among the organization will result in vibrant communication among 

personnel, and by possessing the new values of the Hitachi High-Tech WAY, we can further hone our 

business creation expertise. By always aiming to generate value for our customers and thereby earn-

ing their unbending trust, as well as developing more robust collaboration with them, we will ensure 

that Hitachi High-Tech is a company that stands alongside its customers on the technology forefront.

Returning Profits to Shareholders
At the Hitachi High-Tech Group, our fundamental policy is to return an appropriate amount of profits 

to shareholders while strengthening our financial position and management base. From this stand-

point, we strive to pay a stable dividend, balancing funds for this need with those allocated for inter-

nal reserves.

Along with the ordinary interim dividend of ¥10 per share, in October 2011 we paid a ¥10 per 

share commemorative dividend to mark the tenth anniversary of the Company’s founding. The fiscal 

year-end dividend will be ¥10 per share, the same amount as the previous fiscal year, thereby bring-

ing the cumulative fiscal year dividend amount to ¥30 per share.

In fiscal 2012, we plan to pay a total annual dividend of ¥20 per share, comprising an interim 

dividend and a fiscal year-end dividend. Through ongoing growth in corporate value, we hope to 

continue to return an appropriate amount of profits to shareholders.

Regarding CSR
As our basic philosophy states, our goal is to be a trustworthy corporate citizen through open and 

transparent business practices. We will value the environment and strive to build a prosperous com-

pany that fulfills its social responsibilities. Thus, fulfilling our social responsibilities relies on our dili-

gently putting this philosophy into our business practices. As we head forward, we will set our sights 

on becoming a CSR company in the truest sense by putting the Hitachi High-Tech WAY I mentioned 

before into action.

The Hitachi High-Tech Group has learned many things from the Great East Japan Earthquake that 

occurred in March 2011. In the wake of this disaster, I believe that what we can do as a business 

creation enterprise is to anticipate our stakeholders’ needs and quickly provide them with new value.

The presence of Hitachi High-Tech can be felt in a host of sectors, and our businesses are con-

tributing to society in a variety of ways. One example is our tabletop microscope TM3000, which is 

being used in the “nanoTruck” project launched in 2010 by Germany’s Federal Ministry of Education 

and Research. Our clinical chemistry analyzers, meanwhile, are being used by a number of medical 

institutions committed to healthy living with peace of mind.

Where environmental issues are concerned, we are curbing CO2 emissions by expanding our 

lineup of eco-products, while strengthening our position in eco-friendly products and environmentally 

aware operations. The environment and new energy field in particular is a fast-growing one where we 

can leverage our business creation expertise. Here we will offer solutions that broadly cover the field 

of solar power generation, as well as provide lithium-ion batteries and other onboard automotive 

devices that contribute to realizing a low-carbon society.

For companies, putting basics and proper procedures firmly into practice to gain the public’s 

empathy and trust is essential to developing together with stakeholders in a sustainable manner. But 

individuals, organizations and companies must already be consistently trustworthy before this is even 

possible. To this end, each employee must have a strong awareness of his or her role as a member 

of society, and put basic and proper procedures, as well as right and wrong, before profits in busi-

ness activities. Doing so will naturally lead to meeting our social responsibilities as a corporate citizen.

Going forward, the Hitachi High-Tech Group, as a trusted company, remains determined to help 

realize a more prosperous world by contributing through business activities to social development, 

environmental preservation, and the resolution of social issues.

Putting the Hitachi High-Tech WAY into practice is the start of a new challenge for us. Expect 

great things from Hitachi High-Tech going forward as we move as a business creation enterprise to 

develop new businesses that will become our next earnings pillars, and as we continue to supply 

high-value-added solutions to advanced and cutting-edge customers as a global enterprise.

July 2012

 Masao Hisada

 President and Chief Executive Officer

 To Our Stakeholders

President’s Message
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Group Discussion

Making the Hitachi High-Tech Group 
a Global Winner
 

The Hitachi High-Tech Group is aiming to become a global enterprise, but just what does that mean? 

And what are the challenges involved in realizing that objective? Hitachi High-Technologies President 

and CEO Masao Hisada was joined in a round-table discussion by members of the Corporate 

Marketing Group, Human Resources & General Affairs Division, and Information Systems 

Administration Division—organizations with trans-divisional functions in the business group system 

(hereafter referred to as laterally functioning departments).

The following is an introduction to the challenges involved in becoming a winning global enterprise, 

the systems and infrastructure that are required, and the initiatives that will be taken.

Participants (Right to left)

Masao Hisada President and Chief Executive Officer

Yoshikazu Dairaku Executive Officer, General Manager, Human Resources & General Affairs Division

Yukio Nakanishi General Manager, Information Systems Administration Division

Yoshiyuki Ogura General Manager, Global Business Strategy Division, Corporate Marketing Group

Supporting Work on the Frontlines of Cutting-
Edge Business and Raising Our Global 
Competitiveness
—The Global Enterprise which the Hitachi High-Tech 
Group Aspires to Be—

—The Hitachi High-Tech Group is aiming to become a global 

enterprise, but just what is a “global enterprise”? Please also 

tell us about the role and current situation of the laterally 

functioning departments.

Hisada The Japanese domestic market is currently still flattening 

out, and Japanese companies are actively developing operations 

overseas. The Hitachi High-Tech Group is in the same situation 

and, as stated in our long-term management strategy “Corporate 

Strategy 2011 (CS11)”, our target is to raise the ratio of overseas 

sales in our total sales from the current 58% to 67% in 2020. I 

believe that strong collaboration between the business groups 

and laterally functioning departments is absolutely essential if 

we are to boost the competitiveness of the Group and achieve 

that objective.

Ogura The way I see it, globalization itself is not the objective, but 

the Hitachi High-Tech Group will have evolved into a “true global 

enterprise” when we have achieved an overseas sales ratio of 

67%. In order to contribute to this, the Corporate Marketing 

Group is adopting a cross-company approach to provide sales 

support and enhance marketing capabilities, and is promoting 

inter-departmental collaboration. I believe that, in order to support 

the people on the frontlines, we also need to deploy human 

resources that suit the global development of our business, create 

new mechanisms and construct a support system.

Dairaku With regards to that, first of all we develop business 

strategies and then put in place human resource strategies to 

match them. Currently our overseas Group companies have 
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roughly 1,600 employees. In order to accelerate the globalization 

of our business, we have to aim to further train and reinforce the 

people who are active overseas.

There are three important points in this. The first is early train-

ing for global human resources. We will give young Japanese 

employees overseas experience at an early stage in their career, 

as well as enhancing the training of local staff overseas who will 

become the leaders of the future.

The second is to construct a human resources platform, for 

example by assessing Group job positions worldwide, and main-

taining a database of employees’ skills and careers.

I believe that the third and most important point is to reinforce the 

Hitachi High-Tech WAY, which is an integration of our corporate vision, 

the Hitachi High-Tech SPIRIT and CS11, so that we can ensure that all 

our roughly 10,000 employees are moving in the same direction.

Nakanishi The Information Systems Administration Division is 

focusing on the maintenance of information systems indispensable 

for global management. This work can be roughly classified into the 

maintenance of infrastructure, such as the telecommunications 

circuits upon which computer networks are built, and the installa-

tion of applications that are made to operate on the system.

Specifically, since 2009 we have boosted the speed of our 

network between our overseas offices by between 2 and 10 

times. This enables faster exchanges of global information. When 

it comes to applications, we are trying to streamline work pro-

cesses and boost the quality of work via the global sharing and 

unification of the mission-critical system upon which management 

is built. We are also working to improve service quality and boost 

customer satisfaction by constructing a system for the collection 

and central management of data about products that have been 

delivered to our customers.

Globalize and Localize
—Challenges for the Hitachi High-Tech Group—

—What challenges does the Hitachi High-Tech Group face in 

order to come out on top as a global enterprise? And what 

measures are needed to deal with them?

Hisada Human resources are important. I believe that the training 

of Japanese employees and the effective use of local staff are 

pressing issues. It is also important to create an organization 

capable of maintaining employee motivation and training the 

people who will lead the Hitachi High-Tech Group in the future. 

Globalization is inextricably linked with localization. For example, 

an Indonesian national hired in Japan is developing new business 

locally at PT. Hitachi High-Technologies Indonesia. I believe that 

localization that matches the various situations overseas is neces-

sary for global business development.

Dairaku Localizing is an important policy and since 2004 we 

have provided training for local staff at the manager level in order 

to promote localization. We now have the task of providing train-

ing at the leader and senior management level. Since fiscal 2011 

we have been extensively reviewing our existing training pro-

grams, and have launched a new series of programs entitled 

GMP (Global Management Program) I, II and III. One of these 

programs provides training for individuals who are capable of 

becoming prospective board members and being in charge of 

running the Company, and we anticipate that, in the future, this 

program will produce local staff who will serve as presidents of 

overseas Group companies.

Nakanishi Making the effects of investment visible is the chal-

lenge for the information system. Since 2009, our Group has 

focused on IT investment despite the grim business environment. 

We have installed and maintained the system, but it is difficult to 

Masao Hisada
President and Chief Executive Officer

Yoshikazu Dairaku
Executive Officer, General Manager,  
Human Resources & General Affairs Division

Yukio Nakanishi
General Manager,  
Information Systems Administration Division

Yoshiyuki Ogura
General Manager,
Global Business Strategy Division,
Corporate Marketing Group
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provide visible feedback to the employees who utilize it about 

whether it is being used effectively and about the kind of results it 

produces. If the IT system is to be put to good use in the Hitachi 

High-Tech Group’s global activities, I believe that it is extremely 

important to jointly assess the installed system with its users in 

Japan and overseas, and to continuously improve the system to 

make it even better.

Ogura I feel that our Group has a slightly conservative attitude 

towards overseas production, which I think is a subject we need 

to discuss when we promote globalization. I believe that we can 

do work with high added value if we harness the synergies 

between our trading and manufacturing divisions, incorporate the 

excellent products and technologies we possess all around the 

world, and capitalize upon them as our strengths.

Hisada It is true that overseas production of commoditized prod-

ucts is possible but, if we take such things as the impact of for-

eign exchange rates into account, I think that we should start with 

overseas procurement as our first step. I also believe that a care-

ful analysis of the Group’s strengths and weaknesses is critical 

when engaging in overseas production, and that fundamentally 

we need to keep our core technologies in Japan.

Maintaining “Vertical” and “Lateral” Balance 
and Boosting Collaboration
—Hitachi High-Tech Group Policies and Cooperation—

—How are you aiming for cooperation between laterally 

functioning departments, and between business groups, in 

promoting our policies?

Hisada We introduced the business group system in April 2011 

but this could reinforce vertical divisions within the organization, 

so we have set up the new Corporate Marketing Group to cut 

across the organization, and have also given lateral functions to 

the existing management divisions. I want the Corporate Market-

ing Group, in particular, to emphasize a balance between the 

vertical and the lateral, to consider how marketing should be 

developed for the Hitachi High-Tech Group as a whole, and to put 

their conclusions into practice.

Ogura From a market perspective, there are some kinds of busi-

ness that transcend departmental boundaries. I intend for the 

Corporate Marketing Group to keep a close watch on the market, 

and to discuss with the business groups whether their current 

strategies are the best ones, and the form that their strategies 

should take in light of different countries and regions.

Providing support for Hitachi High-Tech Group branches is 

another role of the Corporate Marketing Group. Business is fun-

damentally market-driven. We will actively pick up ideas from 

branches in Japan and overseas, act as an intermediary between 

them and the business groups, and work on the creation of 

locally-initiated new business. In some ways it is hard for business 

groups to move into developing countries so the Corporate Mar-

keting Group will launch the initial phase and then expand the 

project into the business group when there is a clear prospect of 

commercialization. I would like us to be used as a back office for 

Hitachi High-Tech Group branches.

In collaboration with the Information Systems Administration 

Division we have started a forum to improve communications with 

our overseas offices in order to boost support for branches and for 

the creation of locally-initiated new business. We collect business 

data from all around the world to create a database on the intranet.

Dairaku Business strategy has become clearly distinct with the 

business group system but, while we get a more precise picture 

of the human resources required in each business, there is the 

fear that our medium- to long-term human resource strategy will 

be slightly weakened. As a medium- to long-term strategy, the 

Human Resources & General Affairs Division is therefore hiring 

and training personnel who will be able to cope with globalization.

We currently dispatch between 50 and 60 young employees 

overseas per year but, in addition to the existing one-year work 

training and advanced technology exchanges, starting in 2011 we 

have also set up a new program to send young employees over-

seas for deployments that last a few weeks. We are working on 

early training for the employees who will play a leading role in the 

Group’s globalization, and our objective is that 50% of employees 

will gain overseas experience during their first seven years with 

the Company.

Nakanishi To reinforce the Hitachi High-Tech Group’s promotion 

of global IT, in fiscal 2011 the Information Systems Administration 

Division set up the Global IT Department to support overseas 

systems. I want us to work with the information systems depart-

ments in our overseas companies to achieve the global optimiza-

tion of our IT system.

In terms of lateral cooperation, as part of the global integration 

of the mission-critical system I spoke of earlier, we are closely 

collaborating with the Accounting & Finance Division regarding the 

work processes required to support international accounting 

standards and consolidated performance management. We are 

also introducing a service support system that summarizes cus-

tomer and product data from around the world, a task in which 

we are cooperating with service companies, factories and Quality 

Assurance divisions in order to boost the contribution that the 

system makes to our business activities.

Ogura I believe that the service sector, for example after-sales 

services, will become increasingly important as the Group 

expands its business activities overseas even further in the future. 

By setting up a division within the Corporate Marketing Group to 
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promote Group service strategies, we will unite to develop ser-

vice activities, and will create a system for even greater value-

added business.

A Sense of Ownership about Being a Global 
Winner
—Important Points in Aiming for Globalization—

—What are the important points for the laterally functioning 

departments to bear in mind and maintain an awareness of when 

working towards the globalization of our business structure?

Hisada An important role of such laterally functioning depart-

ments as the Human Resources & General Affairs Division, the 

Information Systems Administration Division and the Corporate 

Marketing Group is to provide support so that the business 

groups’ vertical vector functions properly, and to provide pertinent 

advice from a Company-wide perspective.

Dairaku Unlike the business groups where results are easily 

visible, the laterally functioning departments have a strong bias 

toward providing support for business activities and it is hard to 

see clear results. This may mean that in some ways it will be hard 

to boost motivation. It’s important to set personal targets regard-

ing the way in which you can contribute to boosting the perfor-

mance of the Company as a whole. It is particularly important to 

work with an awareness that the old ways of thinking and acting 

are no longer sufficient. I want people to tackle their work with a 

readiness to change things rather than simply continue to think 

and act along the same old lines.

Nakanishi With a system like cloud computing, the division run-

ning the system inevitably tends to become distanced from the 

people using it. In order to lessen the distance between us and 

the users, I want us to be more active about going overseas and 

to increase our activities on the frontlines, and I also want to 

increase the number of joint projects with overseas IT divisions. I 

will also intensify our collaboration with the Hitachi, Ltd. Informa-

tion Technology Division so that the IT infrastructure of the entire 

Hitachi Group can be put to effective use. Business processes are 

built upon information systems. Armed with business awareness, 

we will work on the construction and reinforcement of information 

systems that can make a business contribution so that the Hitachi 

High-Tech Group does not lag behind in our business speed.

Ogura In terms of maximizing corporate value there is no differ-

ence between marketing, manufacturing, and corporate divisions, 

but the accomplishments of laterally functioning departments are 

not clearly visible and it is hard to maintain motivation. I therefore 

always tell my subordinates to think of the business groups and 

branches as our clients. I believe that such an awareness will 

encourage them to form a relationship where joys and sorrows 

are shared. To achieve this I also want to thoroughly instill a 

hands-on approach, ensure a 

strong grasp of cutting-edge 

trends, maintain high aspirations 

and build a cooperative relationship 

with the business groups.

Dairaku Employees will need to 

pay more attention to what is 

happening overseas and actively 

utilize training programs, while 

supervisors will need to focus on 

training the subordinates who will 

play a leading role in the future, 

in order for the Hitachi High-Tech 

Group to become a global 

enterprise.

Hisada Globalization is an indispensable requirement for the 

Group’s growth and development. If we are to come out a global 

winner, it is important that all our employees, regardless of which 

department they belong to, feel a sense of ownership whereby 

they personally are responsible for the business expansion of the 

Group, and that they personally will promote globalization and 

give it priority in their actions. Local employees occupy a vital 

position in the globalization of the Hitachi High-Tech Group, and I 

am looking forward to what they have to say regarding market 

trends that they perceive on the frontlines. The Group will 

respond with all its might to capitalize upon these employees in 

our development and growth.

Global growth will become a reality when each of our 

employees, with their gaze focused on the world, takes action 

independently under the shared values embodied in the Hitachi 

High-Tech WAY.
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Hitachi High-Tech WAY  —The Hitachi High-Tech Group’s Philosophy, Values and Strategies—

Since its establishment in 2001, the Hitachi High-Tech Group has 

grown as a unique cutting-edge technology company that possesses 

both manufacturing and trading functions through mergers with a 

number of other enterprises and the reshuffling of Group companies.

October 2011 marked the 10th anniversary of the Hitachi High-Tech 

Group’s founding. For the next ten years, a unifying force of some 

kind binding the entire Group together will be essential to achieving 

greater management innovation and promoting global business 

development. This was the impetus behind the drafting of the Hitachi 

High-Tech WAY, the philosophy, values and strategies to be shared 

and implemented by our employees.

The Hitachi High-Tech WAY is made up of three elements;  

Corporate Vision, the Hitachi High-Tech SPIRIT and Corporate Strat-

egy 2011 (CS11).

Corporate Vision offers an image of “how the company wants to be,” 

while Hitachi High-Tech SPIRIT expresses the core values we all 

cherish as the Hitachi High-Tech Group. CS11, our new corporate 

strategy for the next decade and the grounds on which we base our 

business decisions, will guide the way that we promote all Hitachi 

High-Tech businesses.

 Corporate Vision

Becoming a global top in high-tech solutions

 Hitachi High-Tech SPIRIT

Challenge, Openness, Speed and Teamwork

 Long-term Management Strategy  
(CS11: Corporate Strategy 2011)

Leading the way for our customers’ future as a fast-moving creator of 
cutting-edge business

Hitachi High-Tech WAY
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Creative Minds. Innovative Solutions.

“Creative Minds. Innovative Solutions” is our slogan for the Hitachi High-Tech WAY. 

We believe that this can also be expressed as “providing innovative solutions 

through creative minds.”

In tandem with this slogan, the sharing and implementation of the Hitachi High-

Tech WAY by each Group employee will enable the provision of optimal value to 

customers, thereby contributing to further improvement in corporate value and 

spurring the development of cutting-edge technology as a global company.

Strategy statement

Leading the way for our customers’ future as a fast-moving creator of  
cutting-edge business

CS11

Hitachi High-Tech SPIRIT

CHALLENGE
Always taking on new challenges
•	We	energetically	take	on	challenges	in	new	fields	with	our	eye	on	future	

market and customer needs.
•	We	steadfastly	pursue	the	challenges	we	have	set	as	we	progress	

toward our high goals.

OPENNESS
Always being open to others
•	We	engage	in	open,	lively	communication	with	people	in	and	outside	the	

company to generate synergy.
•	We	strive	to	treat	others	fairly	on	the	basis	of	mutual	respect,	irrespective 

of nationality, ethnicity, or gender.

SPEED
Always working in a speedy manner
•	We	satisfy	people	with	speedy	responses	that	exceed	customer	and	

market expectations.
•	We	speedily	implement	the	PDCA	cycle	—	continually	improving	opera-

tions through a “Plan, Do, Check, Act” process — in pursuit of high quality.

TEAMWORK
Always emphasizing teamwork
•	We	create	new	value	for	the	market	and	our	customers	through	internal	

and external collaboration.
•	We	work	together	as	a	unified	group	of	professionals	in	order	to	reach	

our common goals.

 Target fields

• Next-generation electronics

• Life sciences

• Environment and new energy

• Social innovation

 Business creation capabilities

[Fusion of strengths as a trading company and manufacturer] x [the overall strength of the Hitachi Group]

 Global strategy

Accelerate global development centered on the Asian belt from 56 business bases in 27 countries
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Electronic Device Systems

Fine Technology Systems

Science & Medical Systems

Industrial & IT Systems

Advanced Industrial Products

Due to changes in accounting standards, previous segment classifications have been reclassified 
based on the Company’s recently formulated “Management Approach” from the fiscal year ended 
March 31, 2011.

2012 Sales by Segments

Net Sales and Operating Profit by Segment

Major Products
Operating Profit 
(Loss) (millions of yen)

Net Sales
(millions of yen)

n  Process Equipment
n  Metrology & Inspection Equipment
n  Back-end & Assembly Equipment
 and others

n  FPD Manufacturing Equipment
n  HD Manufacturing Equipment
 and others

n  Electron Microscopes
n  Analytical Instruments
n  Biotechnology Products
n  Clinical Analyzers
 and others

n  LIB Assembly Systems
n  Automotive HDDs
n  IT Solutions
n  Control Systems
 and others

n  Industrial Materials
n  Optical-related Components
n  Electronic Devices and Materials
n  Fine Chemicals
 and others

102,386
95,899

12/311/3

10,58411,646

12/311/3

22,979

38,803

12/311/3

147,055

115,377

12/311/3

–6,273

1,148

12/311/3

20,994

12,122

12/311/3

121,687118,206

12/311/3

1,360
1,242

12/311/3

261,216
295,646

12/311/3

2,626

1,128

12/311/3

Electronic Device 
Systems
15.6%

Fine Technology 
Systems
3.5%

Science & Medical 
Systems
22.4%

Industrial & IT 
Systems
18.6%

Advanced Industrial 
Products
39.9%

Years ended March 31 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

For the year: (millions of yen)

Net sales 778,229 831,050 936,865 888,293 951,619 943,124 774,950 616,877

Electronic Device Systems 136,239 137,614 229,275 227,964 262,217 264,778 168,324 114,060

Life Sciences 90,721 89,200 83,866 85,331 93,281 96,173 97,725 95,459

Information Systems & 
Electronic Components 305,750 327,840 309,801 261,536 237,444 232,716 203,758 159,544

Advanced Industrial 
Products 245,519 276,396 313,923 313,462 358,677 349,457 305,143 247,814

Operating profit (loss) 11,844 13,798 30,001 36,036 45,062 49,141 14,909 (1,626)

Electronic Device Systems 2,810 3,837 19,754 22,366 26,897 23,145 (4,816) (17,003)

Life Sciences 6,067 5,974 5,493 8,834 12,313 18,426 19,407 15,839

Information Systems & 
Electronic Components 3,001 1,938 1,744 1,577 2,233 4,136 (1,593) (2,175)

Advanced Industrial 
Products (101) 2,035 3,003 3,252 3,624 3,508 1,879 1,725

Eliminations 67 14 7 7 (5) (74) 32 (12)

Review of Operations [At a Glance]

Years ended March 31, 2003–2010

Note: Total does not include “Others & Adjustments”

Review of Operations

 Review of Operations [At a Glance]
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Fiscal 2011 in Review
In semiconductor manufacturing equipment, the fiscal year 
ended March 31, 2012 witnessed a sharp increase in etching 
systems, notably in the U.S. market, against a backdrop of 
greater investment in miniaturization by major overseas manufac-
turers. Similarly, growth was firm in mainstay CD-Measurement 
SEMs, reflecting large-scale capital investment by prominent 
Korean, Taiwan Region and other overseas manufacturers. In 
contrast, chip mounters saw performance dip slightly, as intensi-
fying competition primarily in high-speed mounters for mobile 
devices offset a temporary surge in demand triggered by the 
flooding in Thailand. Die bonders experienced a sharp downturn, 
as stagnation in Asia’s memory market triggered delays in capital 
investment. Ultimately, segment sales rose 6.8% year on year, to 
¥102.4 billion. Despite initial shipment delays from the impact of 
the Great East Japan Earthquake, this outcome was the result of 
faster-than-expected restoration of the supply chain and econ-
omy, coupled with peak demand from key manufacturers outside 
of Japan.

Outlook for Fiscal 2012
We anticipate firm growth in semiconductor-related markets in 
fiscal 2012, as investments pertaining to mobile devices continue 
to gain momentum. The assembly equipment market, mean-
while, should see substantial growth centered on China.

Aggressive capital investment in semiconductor manufactur-
ing equipment is expected to continue, driven by a winnowing of 
the microchip industry in which the three major semiconductor 
device manufacturers now control roughly 50% of the market. 
Accordingly, performance in this segment is also expected to 
remain firm. Through expansion in the customer base via sales 
of mainstay products and the launch of new products, we are 
aiming for segment sales of ¥115.0 billion, up 12% year on year.

Electronic Device Systems

(Source)  Gartner (Jun. 2012)/HHT’s estimation (Source)  Created by HHT, based on Japan Robot Association’s data (Jan. 2012).

 Click here for the latest market and business performance outlook  

YoY

+2%
YoY

–4%
YoY

+10%

YoY

+16%
YoY

–19%
YoY

–2%
Back-end

Non-HHT-related

Front-end
HHT-Related

 Segment Sales:  ¥102.4 billion
 Percentage of Net Sales:  

Launching new products 
responsive to technology 
changes to attain 
sustainable growth.

Electronic Device Systems contributes to 
realizing customer value by developing 
products in swift response to miniaturization, 
new materials and other technological 
innovations in semiconductor devices 
targeting mobile devices, communications 
and other growth markets. Sights now are on 
additional growth through the launch of new 
products and greater cost competitiveness.

Assembly Equipment Market
(100 million yen)

Semiconductor Manufacturing Equipment Market
(100 million US$)

15.6%
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1,150
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232

1,024

392

421

211

0 100%
+10% Back-end & Assembly Equipment

+16% Metrology & Inspection Equipment

+10% Process Equipment

13/3 (est.)12/3

12/3

13/3 
(est.)

Growth in the global market for mobile devices, specifically in 
smartphones and tablets, is driving the semiconductor market. 
Customer needs with respect to the manufacturing of semicon-
ductor devices, meanwhile, have diversified extensively in scope 
from devices that are even smaller and take up less mounting 
area, to the upkeep of yield rates in mass production 
frameworks.

As mass production frameworks are enhanced and adapted 
to even smaller semiconductor devices and energy-efficient 
designs, the application of double-patterning and other changes 
are spurring an increase in the number of semiconductor manu-
facturing processes. At Hitachi High-Tech, we are utilizing high-
precision etching and measurement technologies compatible 
with the cutting-edge 2X and 1Xnm generation of miniaturization 
and 3D structures to develop new products. At the same time, 
we are striving to expand increasingly diverse value for customers 
by proposing solutions for realizing better throughput, automation 
and other yield improvements and productivity enhancements.

Similarly, in back-end & assembly equipment, we are aggres-
sively expanding our share in China and the rest of Asia by 
launching new products, among them flexible bonders and high-
throughput, high-precision chip mounters compatible with the 

mixed mounting and diversification of new types of memory 
devices and compact components.

Partnerships with cutting-edge device manufacturers are 
essential to keeping pace with nonstop technological changes. 
At Hitachi High-Tech, we intend to further accelerate the Joint 
Development Program (JDP) and other avenues for collaboration, 
along with upgrading our bases in the U.S., Korea, Taiwan 
Region and other overseas locations. For these reasons as well, 
we are determined to build a lean structure integrating sales, 
development and production, with the goal of highly dynamic 
responsiveness to customers in mind.

Technological innovation in the next-generation electronics 
field is a never-ending process. Through the timely launch of new 
products tailored to customer needs, coupled with stronger cost 
competitiveness prefaced on extensive manufacturing reforms, 
we seek to earn the trust of a wide range of customers through 
initiatives that realize customer value.

Strategy for Fiscal 2012

Solving customer issues 
and building powerful 
partnerships.

Electronic Device Systems

DB900
Flexible die bonder for small packages

CG5000
CD-Measurement SEM designed for sub-22nm 
technology node and beyond

YoY
+12%

12/3:  Firm growth due to active investments by MPU. DRAM-related  
investments were restrained.

13/3:  Big investments by foundries will continue. Logic-related 
(est.) investments will increase.

Other
MPUNAND

Logic FoundryDRAM

Sales Change in Main Products
(100 million yen)

Sales Ratio by Fields (Front-end Equipment)
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Fiscal 2011 in Review
Sales of FPD manufacturing equipment, particularly proximity 
exposure systems, were sharply lower in fiscal 2011. This mainly 
reflected worsening revenues among LCD panel manufacturers 
due to plummeting prices for LCD panels for televisions. Another 
major factor was delays in previously projected investment 
among customers ahead of projected expansion in China’s LCD 
television market.

In HD manufacturing equipment, sales were sharply lower, the 
result of postponed capital investments due to industry realign-
ment and the impact of flooding in Thailand.

Colored by these intense market effects, segment sales 
declined 40.8% year on year to ¥23.0 billion.

Outlook for Fiscal 2012
The FPD industry will likely see larger LCD panels continue to 
lead the market on a surface area basis in fiscal 2012. Falling 
prices and other factors, however, are widely predicted to culmi-
nate in relatively severe conditions for the FPD equipment market. 
On a revenue basis, sales related to small- and medium-sized 
panels are projected to lead the market, spurred by growth in 
smartphones and tablets. Elsewhere, Organic Light Emitting 
Diodes (OLEDs) are now attracting attention, with these panels 
poised for use not only in televisions under development but in 
the fast-growing mobile devices field. As such, future OLED 
market growth is highly anticipated.

In HD manufacturing equipment, a greater willingness to 
invest among manufacturers appears likely now that industry 
consolidation has slowed and hard disk prices have risen due to 
the flooding in Thailand. With the start of investments to boost 
production capabilities, Hitachi High-Tech will push for full-
fledged sales expansion of its head element configuration and 
optical patterned media inspection systems.

These efforts notwithstanding, given the substantial uncertainty 
that persists around market trends, we are projecting segment 
sales of ¥20.0 billion, representing a year on year decline of 13%.

Fine Technology Systems

  Smartphone
  Tablet
  PC 
  LCD TV

  Smartphone
  Tablet
  PC 
  LCD TV

Working toward a recovery 
in market share by 
capitalizing on successful 
structural reforms and 
launching new businesses.

In Fine Technology Systems, we are 
advancing structural reforms and 
reconfiguring our business portfolio to 
capture growth opportunities even in a 
radically changed business environment. 
Along with enhancing the competitiveness of 
existing products, we are targeting a return 
to growth via the launch of new businesses.

 Segment Sales:  ¥23.0 billion
 Percentage of Net Sales:  

(Source) DisplaySearch (Source) DisplaySearch

Small/medium-size panel

Small/medium-size panel

Large-size panel

Large-size panel

 Click here for the latest market and business performance outlook  

Market Based on FPD Sales
(Billion US$)

Market Based on FPD Size
(Mm2)

3.5%

Review of Operations

 Fine Technology Systems

23Hitachi High-Technologies  Annual Report 2012

http://www.hitachi-hitec.com/global/ir/results.html


200

114

86

230

185

45

0

60

40

20

55

+92%
HD Manufacturing Equipment,

Others

–38% FPD Manufacturing Equipment

13/3 (est.)12/3 CY2010 CY2011 CY2012 
(est.)

CY2015 
(est.)

CY2020 
(est.)

In June 2012, Fine Technology Systems will consolidate business 
bases as the capstone to structural reforms initiated during the 
fiscal year ended March 31, 2012. Once complete, we will push 
ahead with enhancing both productivity and operational 
efficiency.

In step with the shift in investment in LCD panels to small- and 
medium-sized panels due to robust smartphone and tablet sales, 
we will strengthen our own capacity to respond to these panel 
sizes. To this end, and to properly answer market needs with 
respect to high definition and other features, we will hone our 
competitiveness in proximity exposure systems for small- and 
medium-sized, high-definition panels.

We are also aiming to launch OLED manufacturing equipment 
in fiscal 2012. OLED displays are highly compatible with touch 
panel technology, and will lead to thinner, lighter displays that 
consume less power. As such, OLED displays are garnering 
attention from a spectrum of industries. Hitachi High-Tech has 
been involved in the development of OLED manufacturing equip-
ment for several years now, and is ready to respond to rapidly 
emerging market needs in the coming years.

One of our new business creation activities, coating and 
deposition solutions, is a total solutions business covering equip-
ment, materials and manufacturing processes. Technologies 
developed in this business will eventually be applied to solar cells 
and the development of other new businesses, making future 
business expansion all the more likely. We are also embarking on 
a shift in resources aimed at meeting emerging needs related to 
printable electronics and other new growth markets in the field of 
environment and new energy. Although conditions surrounding 
Fine Technology Systems continue to remain challenging, we will 
move forward with reconfiguring our business portfolio, backed 
by a unified business strategy covering design and development, 
manufacturing, sales and after-sales service.

Strategy for Fiscal 2012

Nurturing OLED 
manufacturing equipment 
and other new growth 
seeds.

Fine Technology Systems

YoY
–13%

(Source) ID TechEX

OLED
19

PV 17

Transistor
8

Electronic paper
6

Others
5

RQ7800/RA5000
Disk test system ideal for characteristic measurement in 
high density disks and small disks

LE0200SD
High productivity and high precision proximity exposure 
system for large-scale glass substrate

Printable Electronics Market
(Billion US$)

Sales Change in Main Products
(100 million yen)
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Fiscal 2011 in Review
Sales of scientific instruments rose sharply in fiscal 2011, buoyed 
by brisk sales of electron microscopes and other new products, 
particularly to emerging markets.

Similarly, sales of biotechnology products/clinical analyzers 
were substantially higher atop sales growth of new products, 
most notably in overseas markets. This business was severely 
impacted by damage sustained to the Naka Division from the 
Great East Japan Earthquake. We worked diligently to restore 
operations at our key plant, recognizing the importance of 
 continuity in a business with products that have implications for 
patient survival. By June 2011, operations had recovered to 
pre-disaster levels. We then set out to augment our production 
framework, and consequently achieved significant growth by 
amply meeting strong demand. The inclusion in this term of deliv-
eries slated for the end of the previous fiscal year that had to be 
delayed due to the disaster was another factor in lifting overall 
segment sales 27.5% year on year, to ¥147.1 billion.

Outlook for Fiscal 2012
In the scientific instruments market, analytical instruments are 
predicted to see firm growth in China and emerging markets 
going forward. Growth in electron microscopes, meanwhile, is 
likely to be modest overall, as expansion in demand from new 
energy, new materials and other cutting-edge fields ahead of the 
next generation of products in these sectors will counter falling 
demand from semiconductor and LCD-related sectors.

In the biotechnology products/clinical analyzers market, the field 
of in vitro diagnostics, including the clinical chemistry and immuno-
diagnostic areas, is set to grow atop a recovery in the U.S. market 
and firm demand from China and other Asian markets, which 
should outweigh a predicted stagnation in the European market. 
In the DNA sequencer market, competition is intensifying as the 
pace of technological advancement continues to move faster than 
anticipated. Nevertheless, stable demand is projected for capillary 
electrophoresis (CE) sequencers, currently the most trusted tech-
nology and the de facto standard.

Although modest growth is anticipated for the market overall, 
growth on a par with the previous fiscal year appears unlikely. 
Taking into account the yen’s appreciation and other factors, we 
are projecting segment sales of ¥134.9 billion, for a year on year 
decline of 8%.

Science & Medical Systems

 Segment Sales  ¥147.1 billion
 Percentage of Net Sales:  

Strategically launch highly 
competitive new products 
to gain customers’ 
unwavering trust.

In Science & Medical Systems, our steps to 
target fast-growing China and emerging 
markets include the establishment of our 
first overseas development site in Dalian, 
China, to enhance our responsiveness to 
customers, coupled with the aggressive 
launch of highly competitive, strategic 
products. We are also tackling new 
businesses built on deeply embedded 
System Collaboration Business (SCB) 
relationships with leading customers, as we 
look to bolster competitiveness.

(Source) HHT’s estimations (Source) HHT’s estimations (reagent and equipment included)

Electron Microscopes
DNA Sequencers

Immunity

Elemental Analysis
Molecular Analysis

Analytical 
InstrumentsSeparation Analysis

Biochemistry

CAGR 4% CAGR 5%

 Click here for the latest market and business performance outlook  

22.4%

Biotechnology Products/Clinical Analyzers Market (HHT-related)
(100 million yen) (based on sales)

Scientific Instruments Market (HHT-related)
(100 million yen) (based on sales) 
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–4% Electron Microscopes
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–31% Biotechnology Products,Others
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In June 2011, Hitachi High-Tech established a development 
center in Dalian, China, its first development site outside of 
Japan. To respond to needs from China and emerging markets, 
we are developing a business structure integrating marketing, 
development and production. In tandem, we will steadily bring 
competitive new products to market in a timely fashion with eyes 
set on expansion in analytical instruments. A sample of the core 
technologies that Hitachi High-Tech possesses includes optical 
and fluid control technologies used in analytical instruments, 
electron beam technologies used in electron microscopes and 
other equipment. Hitachi High-Tech’s key strength is that it owns 
technologies for both analytical instruments and electron micro-
scopes that it can combine at will. Going forward, we will 
strengthen these technologies and merge them to continually 
deliver new products, with the aim of boosting our market share.

In December 2011, we opened the Tokyo Solution Laboratory 
in Kanagawa Prefecture, Japan. Along with enhancing our 
capacity to demonstrate products to customers, this lab will 
strengthen our development of cutting-edge applications as we 
focus on the pursuit of customer value.

In biotechnology/clinical analyzers, our focus is on expanding 
sales of large- and medium-sized clinical chemistry and immuno-
diagnostic analyzers by further developing SCB with leading 
customers outside of Japan. Additionally, we will aggressively 
promote the sales launch of CE sequencers in the clinical labora-
tory testing field with overseas partners.

Strategy for Fiscal 2012

Establishment of first 
overseas development 
base for successive 
launch of new products 
embodying reinforced 
core technologies.

Science & Medical Systems

3500 series
DNA sequencer combining ease of use with high performance  
(Collaboration with Life Technologies Corporation)

SU8000 series
Powerful lineup for ultra-high-resolution scanning electron microscopes

Note: ( ) = effect of earthquake excluded. Note: ( ) = effect of earthquake excluded.

YoY
–6% 
(+1%)

YoY
–9% 
(–7%)

Sales Change in Main Products
(100 million yen)

Sales Change in Main Products
(100 million yen)

Scientific Instruments Biotechnology Products/Clinical Analyzers  
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Fiscal 2011 in Review
Sales of lithium-ion battery (LIB) assembly systems declined in 
fiscal 2011, tracking a decline in investment stemming from 
weakness in the electronic devices market. Similarly, sales of 
automotive hard disk drives (HDDs) fell sharply, mainly due to the 
impact on the supply chain of the March 2011 earthquake in 
Japan and the flooding in Thailand.

In contrast, the IT solutions business reported substantial 
growth atop the launch of new smartphone models in the U.S. 
market. Overall, sales in the segment rose 2.9% year on year to 
¥121.7 billion.

Outlook for Fiscal 2012
The global economy is set to see slower growth in China, other 
emerging markets, and Europe during fiscal 2012. Accordingly, 
more time is likely required before a full-fledged recovery in cus-
tomer investment, raw materials and components materializes.

In this climate, sales of LIB assembly systems are neverthe-
less projected to rise, reflecting investment by automakers and 
increased demand for products for the smartphone market.

Elsewhere, while the supply chain for automotive HDDs is 
expected to recover from the effects of the earthquake and the 
Thai flooding, IT solutions will likely falter due both to more 
intense competition in the market for smartphones and the 
absence of new model launches—a defining feature of strong 
performance in mobile phones for the U.S. market in the previous 
fiscal year. Consequently, segment sales are projected to decline 
9% year on year to ¥111.1 billion.

Though we do not expect surging growth in the market 
 overall, we will move forward with a process of greater selectivity 
and focus centered on the growth market of environment and 
new energy.

Trading Divisions (Industrial & IT Systems/Advanced Industrial Products)

LifeSize Room 220
Full high-definition video conferencing that provide a productive, true-to-life experience

 Segment Sales: ¥121.7 billion
 Percentage of Net Sales: 

Industrial & IT Systems

Striving for growth 
through greater selectivity 
and focus on environment 
and new energy.

YoY
–9%

 Click here for the latest market and business performance outlook  

18.6%

Sales Change in Main Products
(100 million yen)
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Fiscal 2011 in Review
In industrial materials in fiscal 2011, sales mainly of products for 
LCD TVs declined sharply, primarily as a result of customer pro-
duction cutbacks.

In optical-related components, stagnation in the overall market 
prevailed as tighter competition in media recording formats trig-
gered market contraction and communications carriers froze 
investment.

In electronic devices and materials, sales fell substantially, 
reflecting the impact of the earthquake and its aftermath on sili-
con wafers and products for LCD TVs, coupled with sudden 
weakness in Japan’s flat-panel TV market. Overall, sales in the 
segment declined 11.6% year on year to ¥261.2 billion.

Outlook for Fiscal 2012
Growth in demand for industrial materials is expected in fiscal 
2012. A major growth driver will be products for lithium-ion bat-
teries amid expanding sales of new commercial materials, a 
recovery in investment in automotive components, and tax 
breaks and incentives for greener vehicles. In contrast, sales of 
optical-related components are projected to decline due mainly 
to price drops, despite the end of current inventory adjustments 
and a recovery in demand stimulated by rekindled investment. 
Sales of electronic devices and materials, meanwhile, will likely 
suffer, with lackluster sales projected for silicon wafers and 
 components for LCD TVs due to weakness in consumer 
 electronic components.

In other businesses, along with aggressive expansion of the 
procurement solutions business, we plan to accelerate our 
business development efforts in emerging markets, the Asian 
belt zone*, and other priority regions. Consequently, we are 
targeting segment sales of ¥290.1 billion, for a year-on-year 
increase of 11%.

*  Refers to 24 coastal countries and regions across Asia extending from Japan to the Arabian 
peninsula consisting primarily of China, ASEAN countries, India, and the Middle East.

Trading Divisions (Industrial & IT Systems/Advanced Industrial Products)

Solar cell-related components

 Segment Sales: ¥261.2 billion
 Percentage of Net Sales: 

Advanced Industrial Products

Eyeing global growth 
through stronger 
procurement capabilities.

YoY
+11%

 Click here for the latest market and business performance outlook  

39.9%

Sales Change in Main Products
(100 million yen)
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The Hitachi High-Tech Group is moving aggressively forward with 
global business expansion. Trading divisions are on the frontlines 
of this effort, where they are accelerating the Group’s advance-
ment into the Asia belt, Brazil, Russia, Saudi Arabia, and other 
priority regions.

The Hitachi High-Tech Group has two key strengths: a network 
of 56 overseas business bases located in 27 countries, along with 
well-developed customer and supplier bases. Backed by these 
strengths, the Group is moving assertively to broaden its operating 
domain to meet cutting-edge and frontline customer needs by 
sending procurement specialists to emerging markets, coupled with 
expansion and greater responsiveness to target areas.

The stable procurement of a wide variety of products and 
materials will be critical to the Hitachi High-Tech Group’s growth. 
We are aiming to expand our global procurement abilities through 

an emphasis on bolstering Group purchasing power as well as 
low-cost operations. In another move, we have been strengthen-
ing ties with the Hitachi Group since April 2012. Ultimately, Hitachi 
High-Tech’s own overseas bases will serve as anchor points for 
supporting overseas expansion by the Hitachi Group as well as 
contributing to more robust competitiveness.

In readying to address growth fields on a global scale, two vital 
issues in the Group’s aggressive pursuit of new business creation 
are business development that capitalizes on Hitachi High-Tech’s 
strengths and the expansion of high-value-added businesses. In 
April 2012, we merged Hitachi High-Tech Trading Corporation, a 
Group company primarily involved in industrial measuring systems, 
with Hitachi High-Tech Solutions Corporation, a company engaged 
primarily in the development and sale of measurement device-
related software. Once the market data are analyzed, we will create 

new solutions by developing a 
structure that integrates prod-
ucts and solutions in a bid to 
spur business expansion in the 
social innovation field. In a 
similar fashion, we will take 
steps in environment and new 
energy businesses, positioned 
as priority fields, to quickly 
launch projects that leverage 
our track record in LIB and 
solar cells as a point of entry.

Trading Divisions  
(Industrial & IT Systems/Advanced Industrial Products) 

Strategy for Fiscal 2012

At our trading divisions, we will aim for 
global growth by fortifying our 
procurement capabilities and advancing 
activities as the trading company of the 
Hitachi Group. Another task is to create 
value for customers through new business 
creation, enabled by merging the 
strengths of the Hitachi High-Tech Group.

Trading Divisions (Industrial & IT Systems/Advanced Industrial Products)

 Business Strategies
1. Social Innovation  

Promote water and telecom-
munication business in 
emerging countries. (Indone-
sia etc.)

2. Automobile and Transpor-
tation  
Expand sales of LIB assem-
bly systems through over-
seas development.

3. Environment and New 
Energy 
Promote material business 
related to LIB and PV.

4. Procurement-related 
business

 Strengthening the Power of IT Solutions
Creating industrial solutions by unifying hardware (products)  

and software (solution) business.

Hitachi High-Tech’s 
Proprietary 
Products  
Divisions

Trading Division

Social
Innovation

Environment and New Energy

Automobile and 
TransportationProcurement

Rich Customer 
Bases Cutting-edge 

Information

Rich Supplier 
Bases

IT Solutions

Hitachi, Ltd. &  
Hitachi Group  
Companies

 Strategies by Region
1. China

• Automobile and 
transportation

• Environment and new 
energy

• Procurement-related 
business

2. Thailand
• Automobile and 

transportation
3. Brazil

• Social innovation
4. Indonesia

• Social innovation
• Environment and new 

energy

Basic Policy

Creating customer value by making good use of the trading division—“fusion of strength.” Anchored by three core competen-
cies in our trading divisions—a 
well-developed customer base, 
valuable information from the cut-
ting edge and frontlines of business, 
and a well-developed supplier 
base—the Hitachi High-Tech Group 
is merging its product and solutions 
businesses in order to enhance its 
IT solutions capabilities. From this 
underpinning, the Group will focus 
on business in the four areas of 
social innovation, automobiles and 
transportation, environment and 
new energy, and procurement.

In addition to these, we plan to 
combine the overall strengths of 
the trading divisions to create value 
for customers through collabora-
tion between our own product 
divisions and the Hitachi Group.
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Hitachi High-Technologies’ CSR Vision

Corporate social responsibility (CSR) at the Hitachi High-Tech Group is guided by a basic philosophy shared by all officers and 
employees, and implemented in corporate activities.

Based on the CSR policy of the Hitachi High-Tech Group, we promote CSR activities on a Group-wide basis, paying close attention 
to the themes of “Environment,” “Society,” “Economy,” and “Human Rights,” in fulfilling our social responsibilities as a corporation.

The Hitachi High-Tech Group positions four specific fields as themes for implementing its basic phi-
losophy and fulfilling its responsibilities to society.

Hitachi High-Technologies Corporation aims to be a successful enterprise trusted by all our stakeholders and contributing to 

social progress through business activities that emphasize value creation through high-tech solutions.

We are committed to open, transparent, and reliable business practices. As we continue to grow, we will value the environment 

and strive to build a prosperous community, fulfilling our social responsibility and contributing as a corporate citizen

 with passion and pride in our work.

The CSR policy of the Hitachi High-Tech Group, applicable to CSR efforts across the entire Group, 
embodies activities designed to put our basic CSR philosophy and mission into practice.

1. Commitment to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

2. Contribution to Society through Our Business

3. Disclosure of Information and Stakeholder Engagement

4. Corporate Ethics and Human Rights

5. Environmental Conservation

6. Corporate Citizenship Activities

7. Working Environment

8. Responsible Partnership with Business Partners

Themes in Fulfilling Our Social Responsibilities

Basic Philosophy

CSR Policy of the Hitachi High-Tech Group

Basic Philosophy

Environment
· Promote environmental 
conservation activities

· Promote environmental 
businesses

· Conduct environmental 
contribution activities

Society
· Compliance
· Improve human resource 
development/health & safety

· Work together with suppliers 
and customers

· Co-exist with local communities

Economy
· Maintain sound management
· Enhance reliability of financial 
reporting

· Appropriate profit distribution, 
fair trading

Human Rights
· Abolish discrimination
· Promote equal opportunities 
and respect for diversity

· Ensure fair working 
conditions

Corporate Social 
Responsibility

 Hitachi High-Technologies’ CSR Vision
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Assistance Through Business Activities
Hitachi High-Tech Fielding Corporation, a maintenance service company in the Hitachi High-Tech 
Group, had its vehicles certified for emergency use by the Japan Red Cross Society on March 
12, 2011, the day after the earthquake, and its service engineers travelled to the disaster region 
carrying relief provisions. The engineers conducted maintenance services locally, with priority on 
hospitals and other critical facilities, while also helping customers in their restoration efforts.

In addition, a total of twelve video conferencing systems, imported and sold by Hitachi 
High-Tech, were donated to elementary and middle schools in Miyagi Prefecture and 
 community centers and other institutions in Iwate Prefecture. The systems were intended for 
use in educational activities and for mental health care, remote medical consultations and 
communication between evacuees in the region.

Relief Funds
Hitachi High-Tech and its Group companies in Japan donated ¥18 million to the Japanese Red 
Cross Society, and overseas Group companies collectively donated ¥5.48 million to their coun-
tries’ Red Cross organizations to help evacuees and contribute to the region’s recovery. Manag-
ers and employees in Japan and overseas also raised funds and donated a total of ¥1.69 million.

Assisting in the Aftermath of the Great East Japan Earthquake
Over one year has passed since the Great East Japan Earthquake. We continue to offer prayers for 
all those who lost their lives. And we extend our heartfelt sympathies to all those whose lives continue 
to be disrupted.

The Hitachi High-Tech Group worked to quickly restore manufacturing facilities that were dam-
aged by the earthquake while also taking part in relief and recovery efforts. Looking ahead, we intend 
to continue activities in the region to speed the recovery to normality as much as possible.

Promoting Science Education Through Business Activities
The Hitachi High-Tech Group provides ongoing 
support for educational programs that utilize 
electron microscopes as a part of its science 
promotion activities. In fiscal 2011, we loaned 
a tabletop electron microscope manufactured 
and sold by Hitachi High-Tech to the Royal 
Institution Christmas Lectures, sponsored by 
the British Council and other organizations, 
and helped in experiments that included 
observation of cell structure.

In addition, Hitachi High-Technologies 
Europe GmbH is taking part in the German 
government’s “nanoTruck” project. A tractor-trailer called the nanoTruck containing compact labora-
tory equipment, science-related books and other educational materials travels around Germany 
introducing the general public to nanotechnology and demonstrating its connection to everyday life 
using readily familiar materials. Participants have the opportunity to look at samples using the truck’s 
tabletop electron microscope and experience the world at the nano level.

In October, an experiential learning program was held at a radio station-sponsored event using a 
tabletop electron microscope provided by Hitachi High-Tech. Participants brought snakeskin, spider’s 
web thread and other small objects to observe and operated the microscope themselves. It was a 
very exciting experience for the children.

Donation of video conferencing systemsDelivery of relief supplies and other activities aiding 
reconstruction

The “nanoTruck” Children drawn into the world of electron microscopy

The Royal Institution Christmas Lectures
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Conserving Electricity in Summer
In fiscal 2011, a government order was 
issued that restricted electricity use 
during the summer due to the impact of 
the Great East Japan Earthquake. The 
order mandated a reduction of 15% 
compared to maximum power con-
sumption the previous fiscal year. Hitachi 
High-Tech participated in the Hitachi 
Group’s joint scheme for limiting energy 
consumption and worked on that basis 
to conserve electricity. A number of 
energy-saving measures were imple-
mented, including rotating days off, better monitoring of power use, rigorous management of air 
conditioning, and turning off unnecessary lighting. The Hitachi Group’s Green Curtain Project* was 
also carried out at Group business sites as well as the houses of employees on a voluntary basis. As 
a result, we achieved the energy reduction target.
* The Green Curtain Project involves growing climbing plants like bitter melon on the windows and walls of buildings to shut out the sunlight and 

utilize plant transpiration to reduce the temperature indoors. The “green curtains” create a pleasant workplace and living environment without 
relying on air conditioning.

Eco-Factory Measures at Naka Division Design Building
The Naka Division’s new design building, 
home to design and administrative divi-
sions, was completed in November 
2011. The building plays a central role in 
the Naka Division’s technology. It is a 
dynamic space that facilitates the kind of 
knowledge exchange and technology 
integration that will lead to the develop-
ment of a next generation of core 
technologies.

CSR—Environment Section of AR 2012
Evaluation Standard for Environmental Activities: GREEN 21—2015
To ensure continual improvements and raise the level of environmental activities, the Hitachi Group 
has introduced the GREEN 21—2015 evaluation system. Each fiscal year, GREEN 21 provides a 
quantitative evaluation of completion of environmental activities in 8 categories such as “Eco- 
Management” and “Eco-Mind.” The results are reported in a radar chart to make them visible, and 
then reflected into environmental management. In fiscal 2011, the Hitachi High-Tech Group exceeded 
its target of 384 points, achieving a score of 445 points. Going forward, Hitachi High-Tech will raise 
the level of its environmental activities by strengthening initiatives in such categories as “Environmen-
tal Management and Product and Business Strategy” and “Environmental Management and Supply 
Chain,” in which points were low.

8 Categories and Evaluation Items

Category Major Areas of Evaluation

 Eco-Management-Environmental Management Environmental control, environmental accounting, observance 
of laws and regulations

 Eco-Management-Environmental Management 
and Product and Business Strategy

Reduction of annual CO2 emissions by 100M tons, environment 
business strategy

 Eco-Management-Environmental Management 
and Supply Chain

Collection and provision of environmental information through 
supply chain

 Eco-Mind Environmental education, fostering of environmental experts

 Eco-Products Assessment of products and services

 Eco-Factories-Prevent Global Warming Reduction of CO2 emissions, energy-saving efforts,  energy-
saving in transport

 Eco-Factories-Resource Recycling Resource recycling, control of chemical substances

 Collaboration with Environmental Stakeholders Information disclosure, communications, activities of global 
citizens, ecosystem conservation

FY2011 Targets and Results Radar Chart

* Average for Hitachi High-Technologies, 
divisions and Group companies

 FY2011 (Targets)
 FY2011 (Results)

Eco-Management-Environmental Management

Eco-Products

Eco-Mind

Eco-Management-Environmental 
Management and Supply Chain

Eco-Management-Environmental  
Management and Business Strategy

Collaboration with  
Environmental Stakeholders

Eco-Factories-Resource 
Recycling

Eco-Factories-Prevent 
Global Warming

Green Curtain in Saitama Division

Naka Division Design Building
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Measures for reducing environmental 
impact were incorporated into construction 
of the building from the design stage. 
Because it is an office building, lighting and 
air conditioning account for much of the 
power consumed, so the facility plan included 
seven categories of energy-saving measures 
focused on air conditioning and lighting. 

Specifically, the air conditioning system 
utilizes the raised-floor method and reuses 
return air for highly efficient operations. The 
lighting system is also highly efficient thanks 
to dimmers, motion sensors and a time 
schedule control function.

The building also has solar panels 
installed on the roof, marking the first time 
that a solar power system has been built 
expressly to provide supplementary power 
for the Group’s main research facility.

In this way the Naka Division is striving 
for maximum possible environmental 
 sensitivity through the active adoption and 
utilization of energy-saving systems.

External Evaluation
Hitachi High-Tech actively strives to satisfy the requirements of outside organizations and earn inclu-
sion in socially responsible investment (SRI) funds, which invest in companies based not only on 
financial factors but also on social and environmental factors. We have successfully earned high 
marks from such organizations.

Classification Rating organization Evaluation

SRI-related

EIRIS (Ethical Investment 
Research Services)

Selected for FTSE4Good Global Index Series
(As of April 12, 2012)

Morningstar Japan K.K
Morningstar Socially Responsible Investment Index
(As of January 4, 2012)

The Japan Research 
Institute, Limited

Questionnaire Survey Concerning Trends in CSR Management 
at Japanese Businesses 2011

Ranking Toyo Keizai, Inc.
93rd Toyo Keizai CSR Ranking 2012
(Announced in the Weekly Toyo Keizai March 17, 2012 issue)

Energy Conservation Measures

 Installation of high-efficiency air  conditioning 

system

 Utilization of LED lighting

 Utilization of automated power regulators 

 Installation of electric power visualization system

 Installation of high-efficiency lighting system

 Installation of solar power generation system

 Utilization of amorphous transformers

Solar power generation system

Electric power visualization system
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Basic Rationale Regarding Corporate Governance
In order to become the global leader in high-tech solutions, Hitachi High-Technologies (hereinafter “the Company”) has 

spread the concepts of “focusing on speed,” “focusing on site” and “enhancing consolidated management,” and has 

run its businesses by taking advantage of the Group’s world-leading technologies and global sales force and service 

networks. We believe it is important to enhance business execution oversight, improve management transparency by 

strengthening corporate governance, and fulfill our responsibilities to society in general, including our shareholders. We 

have adopted the Company with Committees System as the corporate governance structure to realize these objectives.

Relationship With Parent Company Hitachi, Ltd.
With the aim of sharing the unified vision of the Hitachi Group, the Company has accepted outside directors from 

Hitachi, Ltd. However, this has not impeded the independence of the Company’s management decisions. The 

authority for individual business execution lies with the executive officers of the Company, and matters that exceed 

the decision-making authority of the executive officers are decided, in accordance with internal company rules, 

after discussion within the Executive Committee, which is made up of leading executive officers. In addition, the 

Company ensures the appropriateness of important transactions with the rest of the Hitachi Group, as in the case 

of other normal transactions, through checks not only by the Sales Department concerned, but also by the Sales 

Administration Department, the Accounting Division and other bodies. 

Reason for Selection and Independence

Auditing, Supervision,  Nomination, Compensation,  and Business Execution Functions
Auditing, Supervision, Nomination, and Compensation
The Company has set up three committees—the Nominating Committee, the Audit Committee, and the Compen-

sation Committee. These bodies ensure that the proposal of candidates for directorship, appointment of executive 

officers, audits of the legality and appropriateness of business execution, and decisions on compensation for 

directors and executive officers are conducted separately from the business execution side of the Company.

Proposals to elect directors at the General Meeting of Shareholders are drafted by the Nominating Committee 

in accordance with internal policy and resolutions are voted on at the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Compensation for executives is individually decided by the Compensation Committee in accordance with basic 

policy, which prescribes fundamental standards on levels of compensation, and specific policies.

The Audit Committee monitors business execution through the internal control system, centered on the Internal 

Auditing Division, which is under the direct authority of the Company President. In addition, the Audit Committee 

members, who are in charge of auditing and conduct on-the-spot inspections based on independent plans, report 

the results to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors. Furthermore, based on close cooperation with the 

independent auditors, the Company ensures the appropriateness of matters related to accounting on both a 

parent company and consolidated basis.

The Board of Directors decides on the appointment of various committee members after deliberation, while 

taking into consideration the duties and authority of each committee.

Business Execution 
Business execution is carried out based on the decisions of the executive officer responsible. However, in the case 

of important executive actions, decisions are made by leading executives on the basis of discussion at ordinary 

meetings of the Executive Committee, which are held once a month.

Hideyo Hayakawa

Mr. Hideyo Hayakawa was selected as an outside director to supervise the management and execution of opera-

tions of the Company from an independent perspective based on his rich experience at a major international 

company and his extensive knowledge and experience in the legal field.

Mr. Hayakawa satisfies the criteria for independent corporate officer of the Tokyo Stock Exchange, Inc. and Osaka 

Securities Exchange Co., Ltd., and the Company has filed a notice thereof to both stock exchanges. Transactions 

involving the purchase of products are conducted between the Company and Mitsui & Co., Ltd., to which Mr. Hayakawa 

belonged in the past. However, as the size of transactions are minimal in comparison to the scale of the Company’s 

business (less than 0.01% of the total amount of the Company’s cost of sales and selling, general and administrative 

expenses), the Company has determined that there is no risk of conflict of interests arising with general shareholders.

Toyoaki Nakamura

Mr. Toyoaki Nakamura was selected as an outside director to introduce his rich experience in corporate manage-

ment and his extensive knowledge and rich experience in the fields of accounting and finance into the management 

of the Company and the supervision of execution of its operations.

Corporate Governance

Having adopted the Company with Committees System as provided in the Companies Act, Hitachi High-Technologies has separated executive and management oversight 
 functions and is upgrading its corporate governance system. In addition, to ensure compliance with laws, ordinances and the Articles of Incorporation, the Company is actively 
working to develop its internal control system.

Kazuhiro Kurihara

Mr. Kazuhiro Kurihara was selected as an outside director to introduce his extensive knowledge and rich experience 

in business transactions into the management of the Company and the supervision of execution of its operations.

Corporate Governance
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Internal Control System
The makeup of our internal control system is as follows:

1.  System Related to Storage and Management of Information Associated with Execution of Duties by 
Executive Officers

(1) Resolutions by the Board of Directors, decisions made by the Executive Committee and approval documents 

resolved by the Executive Officers shall be permanently stored under Document Storage Rules.

(2) Filing, retention, storage or disposal of documents shall be handled with precision according to the Document 

Storage Rules, Information Security Management Rules and other related rules.

2. Provisions Related to Management of Risk of Loss and Other Systems
(1) The Company shall establish Risk Management Regulations, which have been prepared to help boost the 

soundness of its management, shareholders’ interests and social credibility, and develop a system to properly 

identify and manage risks.

(2) The Company, pursuant to the Risk Management Regulations, shall create the position of Chief Risk manage-

ment Officer (hereinafter “CRO”) in charge of overseeing compliance-related risks as group-wide risks, estimate 

and assess specific risks in advance, and, in terms of individual risks, determine the division in charge of the 

risks in consideration of their attributes and deal with such risks accordingly, and develop a framework for 

dealing with such risks at each Committee and each division.

(3) The CRO shall be responsible for communicating information in a speedy and appropriate manner in the event 

of an emergency and setting up an emergency task force.

3. System to Ensure Efficient Execution of Duties by Executive Officers
(1) When making important decisions, Executive Officers shall engage in deliberations at the Executive Committee, 

the Management Committee and the Management Committee of the Business Group, in accordance with 

internal rules including the Executive Committee Regulations and Approval Regulations, etc.

(2) The Company shall check and improve the business promotion status through management control processes 

(“Medium to long term plans,” “Annual budgets,” “Performance outlook,” “Quarterly financial closing,”“Monthly 

closing,” and “Profit/loss management by segment”).

(3) The Internal Auditing Division shall conduct internal audits to verify the effective utilization of management resources.

(4) Members of the Audit Committee shall attend important internal meetings (Budget/Medium-term Management 

Plan Deliberation Committee, Internal Control Management Committees, Management Meetings, Executive 

Officers Meetings, Sales Strategy Committees, Global Sales Committees, and Stagnation Committees) as 

observers, as necessary, in addition to conducting investigation or physical inspection including subsidiaries, to 

fulfill checking functions from the viewpoint of management efficiency.

4.  System to Ensure that the Execution of Duties by Executive Officers and Employees Conforms to 
Laws and Regulations and the Articles of Incorporation

(1) Strict observance of the law shall be the premise of all corporate activities in accordance with the “Corporate 

Vision” and “Code of Corporate Conduct,” and internal rules, including the “Corporate Vision,” shall be made 

available for perusal at all times via in-house intranet.

(2) The CRO shall be the officer responsible for internal controls.

 Additionally, the Company shall establish an Internal Control Management Committee, which will be chaired by 

the CRO, that oversees compliance and group-wide risks, and reinforce compliance with laws and regulations 

by the executive officers and employees.

(3) The Internal Control Management Committee, by conducting training that takes into account the attributes of 

the organization, shall operate the “Priority management division system,” to the end of preventing violations of 

laws, regulations and internal rules, and the recurrence thereof.

(4) The Compliance Committee, which will be chaired by the officer in charge of CSR, shall be established to 

conduct information gathering and confirmation, request improvements, approve compliance programs, report 

on the results, etc.

(5) In-house workshops shall be periodically held by divisions in charge of legal affairs and compliance.

(6) The Internal Auditing Division shall conduct internal audits to identify whether duties are executed in compliance 

with laws and regulations as well as the Articles of Incorporation.

(7) Information shall be gathered and investigation shall be conducted based on the internal reporting system.

5.  System to Ensure the Appropriateness of Business Operations within the Corporate Group 
Comprising the Stock Company in Question, its Parent Company and Subsidiaries

(1) Arrangement with parent company

 1)  In terms of transactions between the parent company and Group companies, checks shall be conducted by 

multiple divisions so that they are performed appropriately in compliance with laws and regulations.

 2)  The Company shall be subjected to audits periodically conducted by its parent company with respect to 

operations, accounting, export management and compliance, and be informed of the audit results and 

receive appropriate feedback.

(2) Relationship with subsidiaries

 1)  The Company shall periodically receive reports on the execution of operations and financial position (budget, 

financial statements) of its subsidiaries.

 2)  The Internal Auditing Division shall periodically conduct operational audits and accounting audits on the 

subsidiaries.

 3) The Audit Committee shall periodically conduct interviews with subsidiaries.

 4)  The Internal Control Management Committee shall establish a risk management structure based on a 

 compliance risk management system including subsidiaries, and reinforce and improve internal controls. 

The priority management division system is also applicable to Group subsidiaries.

 5)  Information shall be gathered and investigation shall be conducted based on the internal reporting system, 

which will include the subsidiaries.

 6)  The Company shall thoroughly enforce the strict observance of the law by conducting education by such 

means as holding workshops at each job rank and compliance training.
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 7)  The “Hitachi High-Technologies Group Code of Conduct,” comprising the concrete code of conduct to be 

applied to the corporate group comprising the Company’s parent company, the Company and the Com-

pany’s subsidiaries, shall be established, and corporate activities shall be conducted that are rooted in 

corporate ethics and compliance, in line with “ethics and integrity.”

 (3)  The Company shall develop an “Internal Control System” for financial reporting as a corporate group com-

prising the Company’s parent company, the Company and the Company’s subsidiaries, and the Internal 

Auditing Division shall verify the System.

6.  Matters Concerning Directors and Employees Who Assist the Duties of the Audit Committee
(1) The Company shall establish a Board of Directors’ Office and appoint Audit Committee staff, who will belong to 

the Board of Directors’ Office.

(2) The Audit Committee staff shall assist the duties of the Audit Committee.

(3) As the need arises, the Internal Auditing Division and administrative divisions shall assist with the duties of the 

Audit Committee.

7.  Matters Concerning Independence of Directors and Employees Mentioned above from Executive Officers
(1) The Audit Committee shall receive a report on personnel reshuffling regarding the Audit Committee staff, who 

have been appointed to the Board of Directors’ Office, in advance, and may propose changes in such person-

nel reshuffling to the Executive Officer in charge of Human Resources and General Affairs by stating the reason 

for such changes.

(2) If an Audit Committee staff belonging to the Board of Directors’ Office is to be disciplined, the Executive Officer 

in charge of Human Resources and General Affairs shall obtain approval from the Audit Committee in advance.

8.  System to Enable Reporting by Executive Officers and Employees to the Audit Committee and other 
Systems to Enable Reports to the Audit Committee

(1) Agenda items put forward for deliberation or reported at meetings of the Executive Committee shall be reported 

by the Executive Officer involved in administration, etc. to members of the Audit Committee without delay.

(2) Results of internal audits conducted by the Internal Auditing Division shall be reported without delay to mem-

bers of the Audit Committee.

(3) The status of reporting, through the internal reporting system, especially matters of particular importance, shall 

be reported to members of the Audit Committee by the Head of the Compliance Committee.

9.  Other Systems to Ensure that Audits by the Audit Committee are Effectively Implemented
(1) The Audit Committee shall utilize the Internal Auditing Division in charge of internal audits and the accounting 

auditor as necessary, such as entrusting them with some audit matters and receiving reports on the results of 

the audits, and conduct audits through collaborative efforts.

(2) The results of audits conducted by the Audit Committee and the Internal Auditing Division shall be reported to 

the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee and feed back shall be provided.

Corporate Governance Structure

Internal Control and  
Business Execution Structure
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Compensation 
Committee
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Internal Control 
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Budget/Medium-term 
Management Plan 
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Directors and Executive Officers
(As of June 2012)

Masao Hisada
Representative Executive 
Officer
President and Chief 
Executive Officer

Takashi Matsuzaka
Vice President and 
Executive Officer

Morihiro Nishida
Vice President and 
Executive Officer

Shinichi Tachi
Vice President and 
Executive Officer

Shigekazu Kato
Vice President and 
Executive Officer

Shuji Sugiyama
Vice President and 
Executive Officer

Toshio Kajimoto
Vice President and 
Executive Officer

Masaho Masuyama
Representative Executive 
Officer
Senior Vice President and 
Executive Officer
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 Directors  Executive Officers

Chairman of the Board

Hidehito Obayashi
Member of Nominating Committee

Director

Masao Hisada
Member of Nominating Committee and  
Compensation Committee

Director

Katsumi Mizuno
Member of Audit Committee

Outside Director

Hideyo Hayakawa
Member of Nominating Committee and Audit Committee

Outside Director

Toyoaki Nakamura
Member of Nominating Committee and Compensation Committee

Outside Director

Kazuhiro Kurihara
Member of Nominating Committee,  
Audit Committee and Compensation Committee

Representative Executive Officer
President and Chief Executive Officer

Masao Hisada
Overall Management Execution

Representative Executive Officer
Senior Vice President and Executive Officer

Masaho Masuyama
Marketing, Trading, Internal Control and Export Control

Vice President and Executive Officer

Takashi Matsuzaka
Corporate Strategy, R&D, Intellectual Property and  
Environmental Management

Vice President and Executive Officer

Shinichi Tachi
Electronic Device Systems

Vice President and Executive Officer

Morihiro Nishida
Accounting & Finance, Information Systems, Export Control,  
Internal Control and Investor Relations

Vice President and Executive Officer

Shigekazu Kato
Fine Technology Systems

Vice President and Executive Officer

Toshio Kajimoto
Science & Medical Systems

Vice President and Executive Officer

Shuji Sugiyama
Manufacturing, Quality Assurance and Procurement

Executive Officer

Kunihiko Ukena
Trading (Advanced Industrial Products)

Executive Officer

Toshiyuki Ikeda
Science & Medical Systems

Executive Officer

Syunichi Uno
Accounting & Finance and Export Control

Executive Officer

Hideo Kakii
Electronic Device Systems

Executive Officer

Katsutaka Kimura
Electronic Device Systems

Executive Officer

Yoshikazu Dairaku
Personnel & General Affairs, CSR, Legal and Public Affairs

Executive Officer

Hideki Tomioka
Manufacturing

Executive Officer

Ryuichi Mizutani
Trading (Industrial & IT Systems)
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Overseas Network
(As of April 2012)

  Branch Office, Overseas Affiliate

 Manufacturing

 North America
United States

Illinois Chicago
California San Francisco

Santa Clara
San Diego
Foster City

Texas Dallas
New York Roslyn Heights
Maryland Gaithersburg
Kentucky Lexington
Oregon Hillsboro
Canada Ontario

Overseas Network

 Southeast Asia
Singapore Tampines
Philippines Manila
India Haryana
Vietnam Hanoi
Malaysia Kuala Lumpur

Penang
Johor Bahru

Indonesia Jakarta
Thailand Bangkok

 East Asia
China Shanghai

Beijing
Shenzhen
Dalian
Tianjin
Suzhou
Guangzhou
Wuxi

Hong Kong Sheung Shui

Korea Seoul
Giheung
Icheon
Chongju
Cheonan

Taiwan Region Taipei
Hsinchu
Taichung
Tainan

 Latin America
Mexico Nuevo Leon
Cuba Havana
Argentina Buenos Aires
Brazil Sao Paulo

 Europe/Middle East
Russia Moscow
Kuwait Kuwait City
Germany Krefeld

Mannheim
Hungary Budapest
Spain Barcelona
Italy Milan
France Paris
United Kingdom London
Switzerland Zug
Ireland Kildare
Israel Kiryat Gat

Network

 Overseas Network
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[Sales/Services]

 North America/Latin America  Europe/Middle East  South East Asia  East Asia

[Manufacturing]

Hitachi High Technologies America, Inc.

Holding: 100%
Capital: US$7.95 million
Address: 10 N. Martingale Road, Suite 500, 
Schaumburg, IL 60173, U.S.A.
Tel: 1-847-273-4141 Fax: 1-847-273-4407

Hitachi High-Technologies Canada, Inc.

Holding: (HTA) 100%
Capital: C$0.5 million
Address: 89 Galaxy Blvd., Suite 14, Rexdale, Ontario, 
M9W 6A4, Canada
Tel: 1-416-675-5860 Fax: 1-416-675-0061

Hitachi High-Technologies do Brasil Ltda.

Holding: 100%
Capital: R$0.65 million
Adress: Avenida Paulista, 854-7°Andar-Cjto.73,  
Edificio Top Center, Bela Vista, CEP 01310-913,  
Sao Paulo-SP, Brazil
Tel: 55-11-3253-2511 Fax: 55-11-3251-2464

Hitachi High-Technologies Europe GmbH

Holding: 100%
Capital: EUR3.13 million
Address: Europark Fichtenhain A12, 47807 Krefeld, 
Germany
Tel: 49-2151-6435-0 Fax: 49-2151-6435-696

Hitachi High Technologies Ireland Limited

Holding: (HTA) 100%
Capital: US$0.1 million
Address: C/O Intel MS: 4-1-2 Collinstown Industrial Park 
Leixlip, Co. Kildare, Ireland
Tel: 353-1-60-64206 Fax: 353-1-60-65298

H.H.T.A. Semiconductor Equipment Israel, Ltd.

Holding: (HTA) 100%
Capital: 1,000NIS
Address: P.O. Box 1000 MS: Hitachi LC2-3S Kiryat Gat 
82109, Israel
Tel: 972-8-666-6342 Fax: 972-8-666-6939

Hitachi High-Technologies (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

Holding: 100%
Capital: S$3.8 million
Address: 7 Tampines Grande, #05-01, Hitachi Square, 
Singapore 528736
Tel: 65-67332754 Fax: 65-67353917

Hitachi High-Technologies IPC (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.

Holding: 20%, (HTS) 80%
Capital: RM3 million
Address: Letter Box No. 183, 33F, UBN Tower, 10 Jalan  
P. Ramlee, 50250 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Tel: 60-3-2078-8800 Fax: 60-3-2078-6968

Hitachi High-Technologies (Thailand) Ltd.

Holding: (HTS) 100%
Capital: TB30 million
Address: 7F, Thaniya Building, 62 Silom Road, 
Suriyawong Bangrak, Bangkok 10500,Thailand
Tel: 66-2-237-4538 Fax: 66-2-236-7346

PT. Hitachi High-Technologies Indonesia

Holding: (HTS) 99.8%, (HTM) 0.2%
Capital: US$500,000 
Address: Unit No 315B, 15th Fl., Sentral Senayan III, 
Jalan Asia Afrika, No.8, Gelora Bung Karno-Senayan, 
Jakarta Pusat 10270, Indonesia
Tel: 62-21-2903-9250 Fax: 62-21-2903-9253

Hitachi High-Technologies (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

Holding: 100%
Capital: US$2.6 million
Address: 21F Hang Seng Bank Tower, 1000 Lujiazui 
Ring Road, Pudong New Area, Shanghai, P.R.C.
Tel: 86-21-6163-1200 Fax: 86-21-6841-5420

Hitachi High-Technologies Hong Kong Limited

Holding: 100%
Capital: HK$15 million
Address: Rm 1623-23A, Landmark North, 39 Lung Sum 
Avenue, Sheung Shui, NT, Hong Kong
Tel: 852-2737-4700 Fax: 852-2377-2169

Hitachi High-Technologies (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

Holding: (HTH) 100%
Capital: HK$2 million
Address: 25F, Aerospace Skyscraper, 4019 Shennan 
Road, Futian District, Shenzhen, P.R.C.
Tel: 86-755-8359-5848
Fax: 86-755-8359-3693

Hitachi High-Technologies Korea Co., Ltd.

Holding: 100%
Capital: WON1,500 million
Address: 8F Young Poong Bldg., 33, Seorin-Dong,  
Chongro-Ku, Seoul, 110-752, Korea
Tel: 82-2-754-7654 Fax: 82-2-757-0360

Hitachi High-Technologies Taiwan Corporation

Holding: 100%
Capital: NT$60 million
Address: Shin Kang Chung Shan Bldg., 10F, 44, Sec. 2, 
Chung Shan N.Road, Taipei, 104, Taiwan
Tel: 886-2-2522-6901
Fax: 886-2-2536-5475

Hitachi Instrument (Suzhou), Ltd.

Holding: 100%
Capital: US$5 million
Address: No. 5 Xinghan Street BLK G, New Industrial 
Park, Suzhou 215021, P.R.C.
Tel: 86-512-6761-0270 Fax: 86-512-6761-0016

Hitachi Instruments Dalian Co., Ltd.

Holding: 60%, (Dalian Levear Electric Co., Ltd.) 40%
Capital: US$0.25 million
Address: No. 15 Xinzhaizi East Street, Ganjingzi District, 
Dalian, Liaoning Province of P.R.C. 116033 (in Dalian 
Levear Electric Co., Ltd.)
Tel: 86-411-86317716 Fax: 86-411-86312213

HTA: Hitachi High Technologies America, Inc.
HTS: Hitachi High-Technologies (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
HTM:  Hitachi High-Technologies IPC (Malaysia) 

Sdn. Bhd.
HTH: Hitachi High-Technologies Hong Kong Limited

Overseas Affiliated Companies

Network

 Overseas Network
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Domestic Network
(As of July 2012)

  Head Office, Branch Office,  
Sales Office

 Manufacturing Division

Head Office (Tokyo)

Hokkaido Branch Office

Goshogawara Office

Tohoku Branch Office

Naka Division

Ibaraki Branch Office

Hitachinaka Sales Office

Tochigi Sales Office

Saitama Division

Mobara Sub Branch Office

Hino Sales Office

Chubu Branch Office

Toyota Sales Office

Yotsukaichi Sales Office

Hokuriku Office

Kyoto Sales Office

Kansai Branch Office

Kasado Division

Shikoku Sales Office

Kyushu Branch Office

South Kyushu Sales Office

Domestic Network

Sales Services/Manufacturing

Hitachi High-Tech Solutions Corporation

Holding: 100%
Capital: ¥400 million
Address: 24-14, Nishi-shimbashi 1-chome, Minato-ku, 
Tokyo 105-8418, Japan
Tel: +81-3-3504-7911 Fax: +81-3-3504-7900

Hitachi High-Tech Materials Corporation

Holding: 100%
Capital: ¥200 million
Address: 24-14, Nishi-shimbashi 1-chome, Minato-ku, 
Tokyo 105-0003, Japan
Tel: +81-3-3504-5011 Fax: +81-3-3504-5095

Hitachi High-Tech Support Corporation

Holding: 100%
Capital: ¥50 million
Address: 24-14, Nishi-shimbashi 1-chome, Minato-ku, 
Tokyo 105-0003, Japan
Tel: +81-3-3504-7951 Fax: +81-3-3504-7973

Giesecke & Devrient Kabushiki Kaisha

Holding: 49%, (Giesecke & Devrient GmbH) 51%
Capital: ¥200 million
Address: 24-14, Nishi-shimbashi 1-chome, Minato-ku, 
Tokyo 105-0003, Japan
Tel: +81-3-3504-5910 Fax: +81-3-3504-5924

Hitachi High-Tech Fielding Corporation

Holding: 100%
Capital: ¥1,000 million
Address: 28-8, Yotsuya 4-chome, Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo 
160-0004, Japan
Tel: +81-3-5379-2311 Fax: +81-3-3341-6158

Hitachi High-Tech Engineering Service 
Corporation

Holding: 100%
Capital: ¥370 million
Address: 1600, Kami, Kamisato-machi, Kodama-gun, 
Saitama 369-0395, Japan
Tel: +81-495-32-2151 Fax: +81-495-32-2152

Hitachi High-Tech Control Systems Corporation

Holding: 100%
Capital: ¥200 million
Address: 500, Miyu-cho, Mito-shi, Ibaraki 319-0316, 
Japan
Tel: +81-29-257-5100 Fax: +81-29-257-5120

Hitachi High-Tech Manufacturing & Service 
Corporation

Holding: 100%
Capital: ¥230 million
Address: 1040, Ichige, Hitachinaka-shi, Ibaraki  
312-0033, Japan
Tel: +81-29-276-6340 Fax: +81-29-276-6349

Hitachi High-Tech Instruments Co., Ltd.

Holding: 100%
Capital: ¥450 million
Address: 6, Menuma-nishi 1-chome, Kumagaya-shi, 
Saitama 360-0238, Japan
Tel: +81-48-506-6000 Fax: +81-48-567-0079

Domestic Affiliated Companies

Network

 Domestic Network
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1. COMPANY OVERVIEW

The Hitachi High-Technologies Group conducts operations in five segments: Electronic Device Sys-

tems, Fine Technology Systems, Science & Medical Systems, Industrial & IT Systems, and Advanced 

Industrial Products. The Group manufactures and sells various products in these five segments, 

mainly related to electronics, and provides maintenance and other services associated with these 

businesses as well. With business driven by the Group’s world-leading technological and global 

marketing capabilities, the goal is to realize our corporate vision of “Becoming a global top in high-

tech solutions.”

2. OPERATING RESULTS

In fiscal 2011, the year ended March 31, 2012, consolidated net sales decreased 1.2% year on year 

to ¥645,865 million. The Group recorded operating profit of ¥25,459 million, down 8.7% year on year, 

and net income of ¥14,265 million, down 19.6%.

Electronic Device Systems

In fiscal year 2011, semiconductor manufacturing equipment witnessed a sharp increase in etching 

systems, notably in the U.S. market, against a backdrop of greater investment in miniaturization by 

major overseas manufacturers. Similarly, growth was firm in CD-Measurement SEMs, reflecting large-

scale capital investment by overseas leading semiconductor manufacturers mainly in the Asian, 

European and U.S. markets. In contrast, chip mounters saw performance dip slightly, as intensifying 

price competition offset a temporary surge in demand triggered by the flooding in Thailand. Die 

bonders experienced a sharp downturn, as stagnation in Asia’s memory market triggered delays in 

capital investment.

 As a result, segment net sales were up 6.8% year on year to ¥102,386 million, and the segment 

recorded operating profit of ¥10,584 million, down 9.1%.

Fine Technology Systems

Sales of FPD manufacturing equipment, particularly proximity exposure systems, were sharply lower 

in fiscal 2011. This mainly reflected worsening revenues among LCD panel manufacturers due to 

Net Sales 

(millions of yen)

 Japan 42.4
 North America 12.9
 Europe 13.8
 Asia 28.6
 Other 2.3

Domestic and Overseas Sales 

(%)

Segment Sales 

(%)

 Electronic Device Systems 15.6
 Fine Technology Systems 3.5
 Science & Medical Systems 22.4
 Industrial & IT Systems 18.6
 Advanced Industrial Products 39.9
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10,584
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Note: Total does not include “Others & Adjustments”
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plummeting prices for LCD panels for TVs. In HD manufacturing equipment, sales were sharply lower, 

the result of postponed capital investments due to industry realignment and the impact of flooding 

in Thailand.

 As a result, segment net sales dropped 40.8% year on year to ¥22,979 million and the operating loss 

amounted to ¥6,273 million, compared to operating profit of ¥1,148 million in the previous fiscal year.

Science & Medical Systems

Sales of scientific instruments rose sharply in fiscal 2011, buoyed by brisk sales of electron micro-

scopes and other new products, and biotechnology products/clinical analyzers significantly increased 

sales through the launch of new products mainly in overseas markets.

 As a result, segment net sales declined 27.5% year on year to ¥147,055 million, while operating 

profit increased 73.2% to ¥20,994 million.

Industrial & IT Systems

Sales of automated assembly systems were low due to the decline in capital investment stemming 

from the downturn in the electronic devices market. Sales of hard disk drive-related products fell 

significantly due to supply chain problems triggered by the Great East Japan Earthquake and the 

flooding in Thailand. There was a major increase in sales of communications-related equipment, 

attributable to the launch of new mobile phone models for the U.S. market.

 As a result, segment net sales increased 2.9% year on year to ¥121,687 million, while operating 

profit increased 9.5% to ¥1,360 million.

Advanced Industrial Products

In industrial materials, sales mainly of products for LCD TVs declined sharply, primarily as a result of 

customer production cutbacks.

 Sales of silicon wafers and LCD-related products decreased considerably as a result of sus-

pended production by customers and business partners in the wake of the earthquake. Sales of 

optical-related components declined, reflecting slumping demand in the Chinese market.

 As a result, segment net sales decreased 11.6% year on year to ¥261,216 million, while operating 

profit dropped 57.0% to ¥1,128 million.

38,803

22,979

–6,273

1,148

11 12–50,000

–25,000

0

25,000

50,000

–10,000

–5,000

0

5,000

10,000

  Net Sales (Left)   Operating Profit (Loss) (Right)

Fine Technology Systems  
Net Sales/Operating Profit (Loss)
(millions of yen)

115,377

12,122

147,055

20,994

11 120

160,000

0

40,000

120,000 30,000

80,000 20,000

40,000 10,000

  Net Sales (Left)   Operating Profit (Right)

Science & Medical Systems  
Net Sales/Operating Profit
(millions of yen)

0

400,000

0

4,000

300,000 3,000

200,000 2,000

100,000 1,000

295,646
2,626 261,216

1,128

11 12

  Net Sales (Left)   Operating Profit (Right)

Advanced Industrial Products  
Net Sales/Operating Profit
(millions of yen)

118,206

1,242

121,687

1,360

11 12 0

2,500

0

150,000

2,000120,000

1,50090,000

1,00060,000

50030,000

  Net Sales (Left)   Operating Profit (Right)

Industrial & IT Systems  
Net Sales/Operating Profit
(millions of yen)

Financial Section

 Management’s Discussion and Analysis

43Hitachi High-Technologies  Annual Report 2012



Net Sales and Operating Profit (Loss) by Segment (millions of yen)

Fiscal 2011 Fiscal 2010 Change (%)

Electronic Device Systems Net Sales 102,386 95,899 6.8
Operating Profit 10,584 11,646 (9.1)

Fine Technology Systems Net Sales 22,979 38,803 (40.8)
Operating Profit (Loss) (6,273) 1,148 –

Science & Medical Systems Net Sales 147,055 115,377 27.5

Operating Profit 20,994 12,122 73.2

Industrial & IT Systems Net Sales 121,687 118,206 2.9

Operating Profit 1,360 1,242 9.5

Advanced Industrial Products Net Sales 261,216 295,646 (11.6)

Operating Profit 1,128 2,626 (57.0)

Cost of Sales and Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

In fiscal 2011, the cost of sales decreased by ¥9,088 million, or 1.7%, year on year to ¥532,894 

million. The cost of sales ratio, meanwhile, improved 0.4 of a percentage point to 82.5%. This mainly 

reflected increased sales in the Science & Medical Systems segment, in which the Group mainly 

handles proprietary products.

 In addition, SG&A expenses rose ¥3,956 million, or 4.7%, year on year to ¥87,512 million. 

Nevertheless, the SG&A ratio worsened 0.8 percentage points to 13.6%, mainly because of 

decreased sales.

Operating Profit

In fiscal 2011, operating profit decreased ¥2,434 million, or 8.7%, year on year, to ¥25,459 million. 

As a result, the operating profit ratio, worsened 0.4 of a percentage point to 3.9%.

Other Income (Expenses) and Income before Income Taxes and Minority Interests

Other income increased due to the recording of ¥4,170 million from a gain on insurance adjustment 

mainly associated with the Great East Japan Earthquake, and ¥1,890 million in insurance income. 

Other expense consisted mainly of ¥2,130 million in business structure improvement expenses. Other 

expense declined for the year due to the absence of ¥303 million in loss on adoption of the account-

ing standard for asset retirement obligations recorded in the previous fiscal year, coupled with a year 

on year decrease of ¥985 million in the loss on disaster triggered by damage from the Great East 

Japan Earthquake.

 As a result of the above, income before income taxes and minority interests was ¥28,314 million, 

an increase of ¥2,197 million, or 8.4%, compared to the previous fiscal year. The ratio to net sales 

improved 0.4 of a percentage point to 4.4%.

Income Taxes and Income before Minority Interests

Income taxes increased ¥5,667 million, or 68.4%, year on year, to ¥13,952 million. This mainly 

reflected an increase in taxable income and a reversal of deferred tax assets accompanying changes 

in the statutory effective tax rate in Japan.

 As a result, income before minority interests for fiscal 2011 decreased by ¥3,470 million, or 

19.5%, to ¥14,362 million. The ratio to net sales worsened 0.5 of a percentage point to 2.2%.
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Minority Interests and Net Income

Minority interests rose ¥17 million, or 22.0% year on year, to ¥97 million.

 As a result, net income for fiscal 2011 was ¥14,265 million, down ¥3,487 million, or 19.6% from the 

previous fiscal year. The ratio to net sales was 2.2%, down 0.5 of a percentage point. Return on equity 

worsened 1.7 percentage points to 5.8%, and net income per share decreased ¥25.36 to ¥103.71.

3. FINANCIAL POSITION

Assets

Total assets at March 31, 2012 stood at ¥442,162 million, an increase of ¥28,895 million, or 7.0%, 

from a year earlier.

 Current assets increased ¥23,343 million, or 7.1%, to ¥353,765 million. This primarily reflected 

deposits to Hitachi Group cash management fund rising ¥18,222 million, or 22.6%, from use of the 

Hitachi Group’s cash pooling system.

 Property, plant and equipment increased ¥5,812 million, or 10.8%, to ¥59,685 million. This was 

mainly attributable to increases of ¥5,504 million, or 11.3% in buildings and structures due to the 

completion of construction of a new building at the Naka Division and other factors.

 Intangible assets increased ¥26 million, or 0.4%, to ¥6,275 million.

 Investments and other assets decreased ¥286 million, or 1.3%, to ¥22,437 million. This was 

mainly attributable to respective decreases of ¥2,332 million, or 28.2%, in deferred tax assets 

because of changes in statutory effective tax rates, and a decrease in deferred charges included 

under “Other assets,” despite an increase of ¥2,873 million, or 35.1% in investments in securities 

due to the purchase of bonds.

Liabilities

Total liabilities increased ¥18,728 million, or 11.0%, to ¥189,150 million.

 Current liabilities rose ¥18,672 million, or 13.1%, to ¥161,545 million. This mainly reflected increases 

of ¥10,564 million, or 11.1%, in trade notes and accounts payable, which stood at a low level at the 

previous fiscal year-end due to the impact of the Great East Japan Earthquake; accrued income taxes 

and other current liabilities also rose ¥4,524 million (114.1%) and ¥6,076 million (64.7%), respectively.

 Long-term liabilities increased ¥56 million, or 0.2%, to ¥27,605 million.
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Net Assets

Net assets on March 31, 2012 stood at ¥253,012 million, an increase of ¥10,167 million, or 4.2%, 

from a year earlier.

 Shareholders’ equity was up ¥10,138 million, or 4.2%, year on year, at ¥254,416 million. This 

mainly reflected an increase of ¥10,139 million, or 5.0%, in retained earnings due to net income of 

¥14,265 million posted for the year, as well as ¥1,375 million in year-end dividends paid (¥10.00 per 

share), and ¥2,751 million in interim dividends paid (¥20.00 per share).

 Accumulated other comprehensive income recorded a loss of ¥1,641 million, ¥74 million worse 

than the loss in the previous fiscal year. This is mainly due to an increase of ¥483 million, or 14.6%, in 

net unrealized holding gains on securities, offset by declines of ¥293 million in net deferred (losses) 

gains on hedges and ¥264 million in foreign currency translation adjustments, respectively.

 Minority interests increased by ¥103 million, or 77.5%, compared to a year earlier, to ¥237 million.

 As a result of the above, the equity ratio decreased 1.5 percentage points year on year to 57.2%, 

while net assets per share increased ¥73.18 to ¥1,837.84.

4. CASH FLOWS

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the fiscal year increased ¥13,894 million to ¥121,598 million 

from a year earlier. The status of respective cash flows and the main contributing factors are out-

lined below.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Operating activities provided net cash of ¥43,453 million, ¥22,537 million more than in the previous 

year. The main reason behind this rise was an increase in trade notes and accounts payable as well 

as the recording of ¥28,314 million in income before income taxes and minority interests.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Investing activities used net cash of ¥25,203 million, ¥26,397 million more than in the previous year 

when investing activities provided net cash. Cash was mainly used for the purchase of property, plant 

and equipment, intangible assets, and investing funds.

 As a result, free cash flows, the total of cash flows from operating activities and cash flows from 

investing activities, decreased ¥3,860 million from the previous year to ¥18,250 million.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Financing activities used net cash of ¥4,137 million, ¥1,188 million more than a year earlier. The 

year on year decline in cash flow was mainly attributable to paying commemorative dividends with 

interim dividends.

 With regard to finance policy, the Group will strengthen its financial base by maintaining sufficient 

liquidity and securing funds. These funds will be used to meet working capital requirements for busi-

ness expansion, R&D, and capital investment. The Group will also maintain a sound balance sheet.

5. R&D ExPENSES

The Hitachi High-Technologies Group is working to boost product competitiveness and develop new 

products and businesses in the following business segments: Electronic Device Systems, Fine Tech-

nology Systems, Science & Medical Systems, and Industrial & IT Systems. R&D expenses relating to 

these activities for fiscal 2011 totaled ¥23,556 million.

R&D Expenses 

(millions of yen) 

R&D Expenses by Segment 

(%)

 Electronic Device Systems 42.9
 Fine Technology Systems 9.8
  Science & Medical Systems 37.2
 Industrial & IT Systems 1.4
 Advanced Industrial Products 0.0
 Company-wide 8.7
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R&D Expenses by Segment

Electronic Device Systems ¥10,096 million

Fine Technology Systems ¥2,302 million

Science & Medical Systems ¥8,764 million

Industrial & IT Systems ¥337 million

Advanced Industrial Products ¥0 million

Company-wide ¥2,057 million

In fiscal 2009, the Hitachi High-Tech Group launched a new business creation initiative scheme to develop businesses with the potential to be 
future earnings pillars and that lie outside of the framework of existing businesses. In fiscal 2010, the Group set up a dedicated internal organi-
zation to this end, and launched two “C (Challenge/Corporate) projects” under this rubric. With the addition of a new project in fiscal 2011, the 
Group is promoting a total of three projects, with one each in drug manufacturing research support, social infrastructure analysis solutions, and 
coating and deposition solutions (launched in fiscal 2011), respectively. The Group is aggressively advancing activities, spearheaded by Hitachi 
High-Tech’s Research and Development Division, designed to strengthen its hand in new technologies in order to bolster new business creation 
and existing businesses.

6. RISK INFORMATION

 The following is a non-exhaustive list of some of the risks the Group might face in the course of its 

business activities that have the potential to affect its operating results, stock price, and financial con-

dition. Forward-looking statements in this report are based on risks identified as of March 31, 2012.

(1) Market Trends

The Group conducts business globally in regions such as Japan, Europe, the U.S., China, and other 

parts of Asia in the Electronic Device Systems, Fine Technology Systems, Science & Medical Systems, 

Industrial & IT Systems, and Advanced Industrial Products fields using both its advanced technological 

development capabilities and trading functions. Changes in the markets for finished electronics prod-

ucts, in the balance of supply and demand for electronic devices, or deterioration in the economic 

environment in any of these regions could adversely affect the Group’s operating results.

(2) Technological Innovation

In the Electronic Device Systems, Fine Technology Systems and Science & Medical Systems fields, 

the Group’s main businesses, new technologies are being developed daily. The development of 

advanced technologies and their continuous application to products and services in a timely manner 

are vital to ensuring the Group’s competitiveness. To launch these sorts of new products, the Group 

is concentrating on research and development in close cooperation with the research facilities of 

parent company Hitachi, Ltd. However, there are no guarantees that the Group’s R&D activities will 

always be successful. Failure to translate R&D and commercialization of new products into success-

ful outcomes could adversely affect the Group’s operating results.

(3) Escalating Competition

The Group’s principal business domains are prone to escalation in competition.

 To prevail in this environment, the Group’s products must be competitive in terms of price, perfor-

mance, quality and brand appeal. However, ensuring competitiveness is an inherently uncertain 

matter, and loss of product competitiveness could adversely affect the Group’s operating results.

(4) Rapid Rise in Materials Expenses

It is difficult for the Group to reflect rising prices of crude oil and basic materials in the sales prices of 

its products. Any further increase in the price of materials could thus adversely affect the Group’s 

operating results.

(5) Risks Associated with International Activities and Developing Business 

Overseas

The Group conducts sales activities extensively around the world. Consequently, there is a risk of 

terrorist attacks, riots, war, infectious diseases, natural disasters or other adverse events in regions 

where the Group’s major clients, or operating bases, are located. The occurrence of such political or 

social risks could result in bans on the movement of employees and shipment of goods. Such a 

situation could cause delays in business activities or adversely affect operating results.
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(6) Natural Disasters

The Group implements measures to prevent disasters at production sites. However, natural disasters 

which cannot be averted through disaster prevention measures, such as a major earthquake, or a 

power outage that dramatically reduces energy supplies, or the closure of workplaces to employees 

who have contracted a new form of influenza or other disease, could hinder the Group’s ability to 

manufacture products or result in the suspension of production, adversely affecting the Group’s oper-

ating results.

(7) Retirement Benefit Obligations

To minimize the risk of deterioration in pension asset investments affecting its operating results and 

financial condition, the Group has introduced a corporate pension fund centered on a cash balance 

plan and other similar systems. However, a downturn in financing conditions caused by a sudden 

change in the economic environment, or a shift in basic rates including the discount rate, and the 

assumed rates for mortality, retirement and salary increases, could adversely affect the Group’s oper-

ating results.

(8) Change in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

The Group conducts business in Japan and overseas. For the purpose of preparing the consolidated 

financial statements, accounts denominated in local currencies in each region are converted to yen. 

Even if there is no change in the value of these accounts on a local currency basis, the value could 

change after conversion to yen. Furthermore, in divisions handling proprietary products, the bulk of 

procurements are denominated in yen, meaning that there is little foreign exchange rate risk related to 

production and procurement costs. Generally speaking, however, sales of proprietary products and 

products sold in trading company operations are adversely affected by an appreciation of the yen 

and benefit from a depreciation of the yen against other currencies.

 A fall in the value of a currency in a country where trading divisions are located could result in 

higher costs for procuring products. Increased costs could lower the Group’s profit margin and 

undermine the price competitiveness of products, adversely affecting the Group’s operating results. 

The Group uses forward exchange contracts to minimize the adverse effects of short-term currency 

fluctuations between major currencies, including the U.S. dollar, euro and yen. However, because 

there are cases where the Group cannot execute planned business activities due to medium- and 

long-term foreign exchange movements, changes in foreign exchange rates could adversely affect 

the Group’s operating results and financial condition.

(9) Intellectual Property-Related Risk

The Group owns intellectual property rights and has acquired licenses that are necessary for its busi-

nesses. Furthermore, as a member of the Hitachi Group, Hitachi High-Technologies is engaged in 

intellectual property activities in close collaboration with Hitachi, Ltd. However, problems relating to the 

infringement of intellectual property rights are inherently difficult to predict. The Group could incur 

considerable expenses in defending itself in a dispute with a third party over intellectual property rights.

(10) Information Security

The Group maintains various confidential information regarding the operation of its businesses, includ-

ing personal information, technology, sales, and other operations. Although the Group endeavors to 

securely manage this personal and technical information, there is a risk that this information could be 

leaked due to unforeseeable circumstances. Any leak of information could lead to a loss of trust in the 

Group or a large payment of damages, which could adversely affect the Group’s operating results.

(11) Litigation and Other Legal Proceedings

In conducting its business operations, the Group faces the risk that business partners or third parties 

may instigate litigation or other legal proceedings against it. Any such action resulting in a demand for 

damages that involves a very large sum and is impossible to foresee could adversely affect the 

Group’s operating results.
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7. OUTLOOK FOR FISCAL 2012

Monetary easing and other measures by countries throughout the world have led to a slight reduction 

of the risk of a double-dip recession. However, we expect the business environment to remain murky, 

reflecting delayed improvement in the employment picture in the U.S., protracted fiscal instability in 

Europe, the yen’s continued strength, and the impact of the recession on the economies of China 

and other emerging countries.

 The Company’s operating environment will likely see aggressive investment in miniaturization and 

advancements in the market for semiconductor manufacturing equipment. In mass production, how-

ever, investment is likely to remain cautious, reflecting falling demand for PCs and LCD TVs.

 A firm willingness to invest in small- and medium-sized LCD and OLED (Organic Light Emitting 

Diode) panels for mobile devices is anticipated in the market for FPD manufacturing equipment. 

Uncertainty remains, however, with regard to the scale and timing of investment in line with produc-

tion investment plans for LCD panels for TVs. In the HD manufacturing equipment market, investment 

that was previously put on hold due to industry consolidation and flooding damage in Thailand is now 

poised for a recovery.

 In the science and medical systems market, while healthy demand is projected in Europe and 

Asia, most notably China, a strong yen and other factors are fueling concerns of fiercer price compe-

tition. In the markets for industrial and IT systems and advanced industrial materials, a full recovery 

will require more time, with investment by customers and demand for raw materials likely to be 

undermined by slower macroeconomic growth.

 Since a full-scale market recovery has yet to materialize, the Company is currently taking steps to 

reduce overall expenses further. This decision follows structural reforms undertaken since the previ-

ous fiscal year, including workforce rightsizing in some businesses and approaching capital invest-

ment and R&D with greater selectivity. In this way, the Group is committed to continuously reviewing 

its cost structure from the ground up.

 Consequently, in fiscal 2012 we expect net sales to increase 2.2% year on year to ¥660,000 

million, while we look for operating profit to improve by 17.8% to ¥30,000 million, and net income to 

increase by 31.8% to ¥18,800 million.
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Millions of yen

Thousands of  
U.S. dollars  

(Note 2)

Assets 2012 2011 2012

Current assets:
Cash (Notes 3, 10 and 24) ¥ 23,293 ¥ 24,968 $  283,402
Trade notes and accounts receivable (Notes 5, 12 and 24) 130,038 130,093 1,582,163
Short-term investments (Notes 4 and 24) 578 80 7,036
Merchandise and finished goods 30,834 27,442 375,155
Work in process 34,176 38,366 415,818
Raw materials 3,552 3,030 43,218
Deferred tax assets (Note 6) 8,927 10,130 108,612
Advances to suppliers 2,246 2,081 27,333
Deposits to Hitachi Group cash management fund (Notes 3, 5 and 24) 98,831 80,609 1,202,473
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (Notes 3 and 5) 22,741 15,175 276,677
Less: allowance for doubtful receivables (Note 24) (1,451) (1,552) (17,657)

Total current assets 353,765 330,422 4,304,230

Property, plant and equipment:
Buildings and structures 54,200 48,696 659,446
Machinery and equipment 35,939 35,954 437,262
Tools, furniture and fixtures 30,862 28,346 375,496
Land 19,913 20,319 242,286
Construction in progress 186 260 2,264

141,100 133,575 1,716,754
Less: accumulated depreciation (81,415) (79,702) (990,573)

Net property, plant and equipment 59,685 53,873 726,181

Intangible assets 6,275 6,249 76,351

Investments and other assets:
Investments in securities (Notes 4, 10 and 24) 11,062 8,189 134,596
Long-term loan 153 227 1,862
Deferred tax assets (Note 6) 5,944 8,276 72,320
Other assets (Note 7) 5,620 7,047 68,368
Less: allowance for doubtful receivables (342) (1,016) (4,159)

Total investments and other assets 22,437 22,723 272,987
Total assets ¥442,162 ¥413,267 $5,379,749

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
Hitachi High-Technologies Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
March 31, 2012 and 2011
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Millions of yen

Thousands of  
U.S. dollars  

(Note 2)

Liabilities and net assets 2012 2011 2012

Current liabilities:
Trade notes and accounts payable (Notes 10, 12 and 24) ¥105,484 ¥ 94,920 $1,283,412 
Accrued income taxes (Note 6) 8,489 3,965 103,286 
Accrued expenses 18,175 17,894 221,135 
Advances from customers (Note 5) 11,531 13,392 140,299 
Provision for product warranty expenses 2,397 2,227 29,170 
Provision for loss on disaster (Note 20) – 1,082 – 
Other current liabilities 15,469 9,393 188,200 

Total current liabilities 161,545 142,873 1,965,502 

Long-term liabilities:
Accrued retirement and severance benefits (Note 7) 26,865 26,629 326,864 
Other liabilities 740 920 9,006 

Total long-term liabilities 27,605 27,549 335,870 
Total liabilities 189,150 170,422 2,301,372 

Net assets:
Shareholders’ equity

Common stock (Note 8) 7,938 7,938 96,587 
Capital surplus (Notes 8 and 9) 35,745 35,745 434,902 
Retained earnings (Note 9) 211,059 200,920 2,567,939 
Treasury stock, at cost, 199,621 shares in 2012 and 199,127 shares in 2011 (326) (325) (3,961)

Total shareholders’ equity 254,416 244,278 3,095,467 
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Net unrealized holding gains on securities 3,798 3,315 46,206 
Net deferred (losses) gains on hedges (278) 15 (3,377)
Foreign currency translation adjustments (5,161) (4,897) (62,808)

Total accumulated other comprehensive income (1,641) (1,567) (19,979)
Minority interests 237 134 2,889 

Total net assets 253,012 242,845 3,078,377 

Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 11)
Total liabilities and net assets ¥442,162 ¥413,267 $5,379,749 

Yen 
U.S. dollars 

(Note 2)
2,012 2,011 2,012 

Net assets per share (Note 13) ¥1,837.84 ¥1,764.66 $22.36
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Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

 (Note 2)
2012 2011 2012

Net sales (Note 5) ¥645,865 ¥653,431 $7,858,189
Cost of sales (Note 14) 532,894 541,982 6,483,680

Gross profit 112,971 111,449 1,374,509

Selling, general and administrative expenses (Note 14) 87,512 83,556 1,064,748
Operating profit 25,459 27,893 309,761

Other income (expenses)
Interest and dividends income (Note 5) 560 423 6,818
Interest expense (69) (78) (841)
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 32 196 393
Gain on sale of investments in securities 104 47 1,265
Gain on sale of membership 5 23 65
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (521) (290) (6,342)
Loss on sale of investments in securities – (1) –
Loss on devaluation of investments in securities (117) (22) (1,421)
Gain on insurance adjustment (Note 17) 4,170 – 50,731
Insurance income (Note 18) 1,890 – 22,990
Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts 205 927 2,490
Foreign exchange gains, net 258 259 3,142
Subsidies for employment adjustment 231 15 2,816
Business structure improvement expenses (Note 19) (2,130) – (25,914)
Loss on disaster (Note 20) (580) (1,565) (7,056)
Impairment losses (Note 21) (1,196) (1,326) (14,546)
Loss on adoption of the accounting standard for asset retirement obligations – (303) –
Environmental expenses (Note 22) (67) (212) (820)
Other, net 80 131 968

2,855 (1,776) 34,738
Income before income taxes and minority interests 28,314 26,117 344,499

Income taxes (Note 6)
Current 10,080 5,748 122,642
Deferred 3,872 2,537 47,110

13,952 8,285 169,752
Income before minority interests 14,362 17,832 174,747

Minority interests 97 80 1,189
Net income ¥ 14,265 ¥ 17,752 $  173,558

Yen
U.S. dollars 

(Note 2)
Net income per share (Note 13) ¥103.71 ¥129.07 $1.26

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Hitachi High-Technologies Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
Years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011

Financial Section

 Consolidated Statements of Operations

52Hitachi High-Technologies  Annual Report 2012



Millions of yen

Thousands of  
U.S. dollars  

(Note 2)

2012 2011 2012

Income before minority interests ¥14,362 ¥17,832 $174,747

Other comprehensive income (Note 23)

Net unrealized holding gains (losses) on securities 483 (356) 5,881

Net deferred (losses) gains on hedges (292) 206 (3,558)

Foreign currency translation adjustments (259) (1,297) (3,154)

Total other comprehensive income (68) (1,447) (831)

Comprehensive income ¥14,294 ¥16,385 $173,916

Comprehensive income attributable to:

Shareholders ¥14,190 ¥16,321 $172,655

Minority interests 104 64 1,261

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Hitachi High-Technologies Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
Years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Hitachi High-Technologies Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
Years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011

Millions of yen

Issued and  
outstanding  

shares  
(thousands)

Common  
stock

Capital  
surplus

Retained  
earnings

Treasury  
stock,  

at cost

Total  
Shareholders’  

Equity

Net unrealized  
holding gains  
on securities

Net deferred  
(losses) gains  

on hedges

Foreign  
currency  

translation  
adjustments

Total  
accumulated 

other  
comprehen-
sive income

Minority  
interests

Total  
net assets

Balance at April 1, 2010 137,739 ¥7,938 ¥35,745 ¥185,919 ¥(321) ¥229,281 ¥3,671 ¥(192) ¥(3,615) ¥ (136) ¥254 ¥229,399

Net income – – – 17,752 – 17,752 – – – – – 17,752

Cash dividends – – – (2,751) – (2,751) – – – – – (2,751)

Purchase of treasury stock – – – – (5) (5) – – – – – (5)

Sale of treasury stock – – 0 – 1 1 – – – – – 1

Net changes in items other than shareholders’ equity – – – – – – (356) 207 (1,282) (1,431) (120) (1,551)

Balance at March 31, 2011 137,739 7,938 35,745 200,920 (325) 244,278 3,315 15 (4,897) (1,567) 134 242,845

Balance at April 1, 2011 137,739 7,938 35,745 200,920 (325) 244,278 3,315 15 (4,897) (1,567) 134 242,845

Net income – – – 14,265 – 14,265 – – – – – 14,265

Cash dividends – – – (4,126) – (4,126) – – – – – (4,126)

Purchase of treasury stock – – – – (1) (1) – – – – – (1)

Sale of treasury stock – – 0 – 0 0 – – – – – 0

Net changes in items other than shareholders’ equity – – – – – – 483 (293) (264) (74) 103 29

Balance at March 31, 2012 137,739 ¥7,938 ¥35,745 ¥211,059 ¥(326) ¥254,416 ¥3,798 ¥(278) ¥(5,161) ¥(1,641) ¥237 ¥253,012

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 2)

Issued and  
outstanding  

shares  
(thousands)

Common  
stock

Capital  
surplus

Retained  
earnings

Treasury  
stock,  

at cost

Total  
Shareholders’  

Equity

Net unrealized  
holding gains  
on securities

Net deferred  
(losses) gains  

on hedges

Foreign  
currency  

translation  
adjustments

Total  
accumulated 

other  
comprehen-
sive income

Minority  
interests

Total  
net assets

Balance at April 1, 2011 137,739 $96,587 $434,902 $2,444,583 $(3,951) $2,972,121 $40,325 $    179 $(59,580) $(19,076) $1,628 $2,954,673

Net  income – – – 173,558 – 173,558 – – – – – 173,558

Cash dividends – – – (50,202) – (50,202) – – – – – (50,202)

Purchase of treasury stock – – – – (11) (11) – – – – – (11)

Sale of treasury stock – – 0 – 1 1 – – – – – 1

Net changes in items other than shareholders’ equity – – – – – – 5,881 (3,556) (3,228) (903) 1,261 358

Balance at March 31, 2012 137,739 $96,587 $434,902 $2,567,939 $(3,961) $3,095,467 $46,206 $(3,377) $(62,808) $(19,979) $2,889 $3,078,377

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Hitachi High-Technologies Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
Years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011

Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

 (Note 2)

2012 2011 2012

Cash flows from operating activities:
Income before income taxes and minority interests ¥ 28,314 ¥26,117 $  344,499
Adjustments to reconcile income before income 

taxes and minority interests to net cash provided 
by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 9,072 8,960 110,381
Impairment losses 1,196 1,326 14,546
Loss on adoption of the accounting standard for 
asset retirement obligations – 303 –

Amortization of goodwill 318 325 3,873
Decrease in allowance for doubtful receivables (769) (940) (9,356)
Increase in provision for product warranty 
expenses 168 493 2,039

Increase in accrued retirement and severance 
benefits 239 853 2,911

(Decrease) increase in provision for loss  
on disaster (1,082) 1,082 (13,169)

Interest and dividends income (560) (423) (6,818)
Interest expense 69 78 841
Foreign exchange (gains) losses, net (45) 77 (551)
Loss on sale and disposal of property, plant and 
equipment, and intangible assets 416 665 5,063

Loss (Gain) on sale and devaluation of securities 13 (24) 156
Gain on sale of membership (5) (23) (65)
(Increase) decrease in trade notes  
and accounts receivable (796) 12,180 (9,681)

Increase in inventories (3,543) (13,928) (43,108)
Increase (decrease) in trade notes  
and accounts payable 11,401 (12,335) 138,719

Other, net 4,963 (474) 60,394
49,369 24,312 600,674

Interest and dividends received 529 424 6,442
Interest paid (19) (18) (235)
Income taxes paid (6,426) (3,802) (78,191)

Net cash provided by operating activities 43,453 20,916 528,690

Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

 (Note 2)

2012 2011 2012

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures (10,777) (5,656) (131,119)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 82 487 1,004
Purchases of securities (3,260) (9) (39,659)
Proceeds from sale and redemption of securities 191 91 2,323
Proceeds from sale of membership 13 26 153
Payments for purchase of business – (3,315) –
Deposits to Hitachi Group cash management fund 

with maturity over three months (34,000) (9,700) (413,676)
Withdrawals from Hitachi Group cash management  

fund with maturity over three months 22,500 19,200 273,756
Other, net 48 70 579

Net cash (used in) provided by  
investing activities (25,203) 1,194 (306,639)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Dividends paid (4,124) (2,748) (50,181)
Other, net (13) (201) (151)

Net cash used in financing activities (4,137) (2,949) (50,332)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and  
cash equivalents (219) (1,645) (2,670)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 13,894 17,516 169,049
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 107,704 90,188 1,310,430
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 3) ¥121,598 ¥107,704 $1,479,479

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Hitachi High-Technologies Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries

1.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hitachi High-Technologies Corporation (the 

Company) and consolidated subsidiaries are prepared on the basis of accounting principles generally 

accepted in Japan, which are different in certain respects as to the application and disclosure 

requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards, and are compiled from the consolidated 

financial statements prepared by the Company as required by the Financial Instruments and 

Exchange Law of Japan.

In addition, for the convenience of readers outside Japan, the consolidated financial statements, 

including the notes to the consolidated financial statements, contain certain reclassifications and 

additional information which are not required under accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

(b) Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its effectively 

controlled subsidiary companies, which in general are majority-owned. All significant intercompany 

accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The cost in excess of net assets of an acquiree, based on the fair value, acquired by the Company 

is being amortized on a straight-line basis over 5 years or, if the amount is not material, charged 

immediately to earnings.

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid investments 

with insignificant risk of changes in value which have maturities of generally three months or less 

when purchased to be cash equivalents.

(d) Short-term Investments and Investments in Securities

The Company accounts for short-term investments and investments in securities in accordance with 

the “Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments” issued by the Accounting Standards Board of 

Japan. Under this standard, securities are to be classified into one of the following three categories 

and accounted for as follows:

•  Securities that the company holds with the objective of generating profits on short-term differences 

in price are classified as trading securities and measured at fair value, with unrealized holding gains 

and losses included in earnings.

•  Securities that the company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as 

held-to-maturity securities and measured at amortized cost.

•  Securities classified as neither trading securities nor held-to-maturity securities are classified as 

available-for-sale securities and measured at fair value, with either unrealized holding gains and 

losses excluded from earnings and reported as net unrealized holding gains (losses) in a separate 

component of net assets until realized, or with unrealized holding losses included in earnings and 

unrealized gains excluded from earnings and reported as unrealized holding gains in a separate 

component of net assets until realized.

The Company measured available-for-sale securities at fair value and reported unrealized holding 

gains and losses as “Net unrealized holding gains on securities” in a separate component of net 

assets. Available-for-sale securities for which it is not practicable to estimate fair value are carried at 

cost. In computing realized gains or losses, cost of available-for-sale securities was principally 

determined by the moving-average method.

(e) Inventories

Inventories are summarized as follows :
Merchandise

Finished goods

Semi-finished goods

Raw materials

:  Stated at cost determined principally by the moving-average method 

(however, the amount stated in the balance sheet was written down to 

reflect deterioration in profitability)

Work in process :  Stated at cost determined principally by specific identification method 

(however, the amount stated in the balance sheet was computed by 

reducing the book value to reflect deterioration in profitability)

(f) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost and depreciated over the estimated useful lives of 

the respective assets by the declining-balance method, except for certain buildings, which were 

acquired on or after April 1, 1998, being depreciated by the straight-line method.
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(g) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are principally amortized by the straight-line method over estimated useful lives.

(h) Allowance for Doubtful Receivables

The allowance for doubtful receivables is established at amounts considered to be appropriate based 

on the Company’s history of credit losses, and an evaluation of potential losses for specific doubtful 

receivables.

(i) Provision for Product Warranty Expenses

The provision for product warranty expenses is estimated and recorded at the time of sales to 

provide for future potential costs, such as costs related to after-sales services, at amounts 

considered to be appropriate based on the Company’s past experience.

(j) Accrued Retirement and Severance Benefits

Accrued retirement and severance benefits for employees is provided based on the estimated 

retirement benefit obligation and the pension assets.

Prior service benefits and costs are recognized as income or expense on a straight-line basis over 

certain years not exceeding the expected average remaining service periods of the employees active at 

the date of the plan amendment. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized as income or expense on a 

straight-line basis from the next year over certain years not exceeding the expected average remaining 

service periods of the employees participating in the plans.

Accrued retirement and severance benefits for directors and statutory auditors of some of 

domestic subsidiaries have been provided for the vested benefits to which they are entitled if they 

were to retire or sever immediately at the balance sheet date.

(k) Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method in accordance with the 

“Accounting Standard for Deferred Income Taxes” issued by the Business Accounting Deliberation 

Council. Under such method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the expected future 

tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amount of 

existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 

measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those 

temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.

(l) Translation of Foreign Currency Accounts

The Company accounts for or translates foreign currency accounts under the “Accounting Standard 

for Foreign Currency Transaction” issued by the Business Accounting Deliberation Council. Under this 

standard, foreign currency transactions are translated into yen at the rates in effect at the transaction 

date. Foreign currency transactions, for which firm forward exchange contracts are held, are 

translated into yen at such contract rates, only if the relation between a foreign currency transaction 

and a related firm forward exchange contract meets the criteria of hedge accounting as regulated in 

the “Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments.” At year-end, monetary assets and liabilities 

denominated in foreign currencies are translated into yen at the rates of exchange in effect at the 

balance sheet date, except for those, as described above, translated at related contract rates. Gains 

or losses resulting from the translation of foreign currencies, including gains and losses on settlement, 

are credited or charged to income as incurred.

The financial statements of the consolidated foreign subsidiaries are translated into the reporting 

currency of yen as follows: all assets and liabilities, accumulated other comprehensive income, and 

minority interests are translated at the rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date; share-

holders’ equity is translated at historical rates; income and expenses are translated at the average 

rate of exchange in effect; and differences in yen amounts arising from the use of different rates for 

translation of assets, liabilities, net assets, and income and expenses are reported as “Foreign cur-

rency translation adjustments,” a separate component of net assets.

(m) Derivative Financial Instruments

Under the “Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments” issued by the Accounting Standards 

Board of Japan, in principle, derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value, with unreal-

ized gains or losses included in earnings. Hedging transactions, which meet the criteria of hedge 

accounting as prescribed in the “Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments,” are accounted for 

using deferral hedge accounting, which requires the unrealized gains or losses to be deferred as a 

component of net assets until gains or losses relating to the hedged items are recognized.

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries have entered into derivative transactions in order 

to manage certain risk arising from adverse fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates; hedging 

instruments are derivative transactions and hedged items are primarily forecast sales denominated in 

foreign currencies.

The derivative transactions are managed in accordance with the companies’ internal policies for 

risk management.
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(n) Treasury Stock

Under the “Accounting Standard for Treasury Shares and Appropriation of Legal Reserve” issued by 

the Accounting Standards Board of Japan, treasury stock is recorded at cost as a deduction of net 

assets. When the Company reissues the treasury stock, the difference between the issuance price 

and the cost of the treasury stock is credited or charged to capital surplus.

(o) Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses are charged to income as incurred.

(p) Net Income per Share

The Company computes and discloses net income per share under the “Accounting Standard for 

Earnings per Share” issued by the Accounting Standards Board of Japan. Under this standard, basic 

net income per share is computed by dividing net income available to common shareholders by the 

weighted average number of shares of common shares outstanding during the respective years. 

Diluted net income per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other 

contracts to issue common stock were exercised and converted into common stock or resulted in 

the issuance of common stock.

(q) Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made in prior year’s consolidated financial statements to conform 

to classification used in current year.

(r) Additional Information

The Company has adopted the “Accounting Standard for Accounting Changes and Error Correc-

tions” and the “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Accounting Changes and Error Corrections” 

issued by the Accounting Standards Board of Japan, for accounting changes and corrections of prior 

period errors which are made after the beginning of the fiscal year 2012.

2. U.S. DOLLAR AMOUNTS
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are expressed in yen and, solely for the 

convenience of the reader, have been translated into the U.S. dollars at the rate of ¥82.19=$1, the 

approximate exchange rate prevailing on the Tokyo Foreign Exchange Market as of March 31, 2012. 

This translation should not be construed as a representation that any amounts shown could be 

converted into U.S. dollars.

3. CASH AND CASH EqUIVALENTS
Reconciliations between consolidated balance sheet captions and cash and cash equivalents as of 

March 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2012 2011 2012

Cash ¥ 23,293 ¥ 24,968 $  283,402

Time deposits with maturity over three months – (5) –

Deposits to Hitachi Group cash management fund 98,831 80,609 1,202,473

Deposits to Hitachi Group cash management fund  
with maturity over three months (19,000) (7,500) (231,172)

Other deposits in other current assets 18,474 9,632 224,776

Cash and cash equivalents ¥121,598 ¥107,704 $1,479,479
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4. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES
Investments in securities as of March 31, 2012 and 2011 are classified as available-for-sale securities. A summary of cost, gross unrealized holding gains, gross unrealized holding losses and aggregate fair 

value by major type of securities are as follows:

Millions of yen

2012 2011

Cost Gross gains Gross losses Aggregate fair value Cost Gross gains Gross losses Aggregate fair value

Available–for–sale securities:

Equity securities ¥1,077 ¥5,905 ¥  – ¥ 6,982 ¥  965 ¥5,572 ¥  – ¥6,537

Debt securities 4,516 1 (18) 4,499 1,501 10 (11) 1,500

Other securities 78 – – 78 80 – – 80

¥5,671 ¥5,906 ¥(18) ¥11,559 ¥2,546 ¥5,582 ¥(11) ¥8,117

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2012

Cost Gross gains Gross losses Aggregate fair value

Available–for–sale securities:

Equity securities $13,100 $71,850 $   – $ 84,950

Debt securities 54,950 8 (221) 54,737

Other securities 944 – – 944

$68,994 $71,858 $(221) $140,631

Debt securities consist mainly of corporate bonds. Other securities consist mainly of investment 

trusts. It is not practicable to estimate the fair value of investments in non-marketable securities 

because of the lack of market prices and difficulty in estimating fair value without incurring  

excessive cost.

The proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities (including those have extreme difficulty in 

determining the fair value) for the year ended March 31, 2012 amounted to ¥190 million ($2,315 

thousand), and the gross realized gains on the sales of those securities for the year ended March 31, 

2012 amounted to ¥104 million ($1,265 thousand).

The proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities (including those have extreme difficulty in 

determining the fair value) for the year ended March 31, 2011 amounted to ¥91 million and the gross 

realized gains and losses on the sales of those securities for the year ended March 31, 2011 

amounted to ¥47 million and ¥1 million, respectively.
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5. BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTY
51.8% of the Company’s outstanding common stock is directly and indirectly owned by Hitachi, Ltd. 

(the parent company). Balances and transactions with the parent company and its affiliated 

companies as of and for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 are summarized as follows:

Balances and Transactions with Hitachi, Ltd.

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2012 2011 2012

Balances:

Trade accounts receivable ¥ 6,707 ¥ 4,196 $   81,607

Deposits to Hitachi Group cash  
management fund 98,831 80,609 1,202,473

Other current assets 17 1 212

Advances from customers 531 445 6,457

Transactions:

Sales ¥23,331 ¥21,822 $  283,871

Cash deposits 18,223 4,988 221,712

Interest income 274 201 3,328

Balances and Transactions with Hitachi America Capital, Ltd.

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2012 2011 2012

Balances:

Other current assets ¥13,561 ¥6,735 $165,000

Transactions:

Cash deposits ¥ 6,826 ¥2,269 $ 83,054

Interest income 20 8 247

6. INCOME TAxES
Reconciliations between the statutory tax rate and the effective income tax rates as a percentage of 

income before income taxes and minority interests are as follows:

2012 2011

Statutory tax rate 40.7% 40.7%

Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 1.7 1.8 

Tax credit (4.3) (1.7)

Valuation allowance 8.7 (4.7)

Different tax rates of foreign subsidiaries (3.3) (3.1)

Effect of changes in tax laws and rates  
in Japan 5.0 –

Other, net 0.8 (1.3)

Effective income tax rates 49.3% 31.7%
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets 

and liabilities as of March 31, 2012 and 2011 are presented below:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2012 2011 2012

Total gross deferred tax assets:

Allowance for doubtful receivables ¥   409 ¥   854 $  4,980

Accrued bonus 3,197 3,554 38,893

Accrued business tax 598 375 7,281

Accrued expenses 375 431 4,564

Intercompany profit on inventories 1,329 1,228 16,170

Devaluation of inventories 1,837 2,269 22,348

Provision for product warranty expenses 682 561 8,299

Loss on disaster – 904 –

Depreciation 830 1,407 10,094

Membership deposit 280 337 3,402

Investments in securities 415 431 5,050

Impairment losses 1,388 294 16,888

Accrued retirement and severance benefits 8,796 9,391 107,018

Net operating loss carryforwards 3,549 2,586 43,184

Other 2,055 2,055 24,998

25,740 26,677 313,169

Less valuation allowance (7,740) (5,570) (94,172)

18,000 21,107 218,997

Total gross deferred tax liabilities:

Retained earnings of foreign subsidiaries (161) (274) (1,954)

Net unrealized holding gains on securities (2,089) (2,255) (25,417)

Fixed asset reduction reserve (835) – (10,159)

Other (44) (172) (535)

(3,129) (2,701) (38,065)

Net deferred tax assets ¥14,871 ¥18,406 $180,932

Net deferred tax assets as of March 31, 2012 and 2011 are reflected in the consolidated balance 

sheets under the following captions:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2012 2011 2012

Deferred tax assets—current ¥ 8,927 ¥10,130 $108,612

Deferred tax assets—noncurrent 5,944 8,276 72,320

Net deferred tax assets ¥14,871 ¥18,406 $180,932

Adjustment of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities due to change of statu-
tory tax rate
Following the promulgation on December 2, 2011 of the “Act for Partial Revision of the Income Tax 

Act etc. for the Purpose of Creating Taxation System Responding to Changes in Economic and 

Social Structures” (Act No.114 of 2011) and the “Act on Special Measures for Securing Financial 

Resources Necessary to Implement Measures for Reconstruction following the Great East Japan 

Earthquake” (Act No.117 of 2011), the effective corporate tax rate used to calculate the Company’s 

deferred tax assets and liabilities was changed from 40.7% to 38.0% for the temporary differences 

expected to be reversed and net operating loss carryforwards expected to be utilized in the fiscal 

years beginning on or after April 1, 2012 and to 35.6% for temporary differences expected to be 

reversed and net operating loss carryforwards expected to be utilized in the fiscal years beginning on 

or after April 1, 2015.

As a result, net deferred tax assets and net deferred losses on hedges decreased by ¥1,130 

million ($13,754 thousand) and ¥12 million ($150 thousand), respectively, and deferred income taxes 

and net unrealized holding gains on securities increased by ¥1,415 million ($17,222 thousand) and 

¥297 million ($3,618 thousand), respectively.
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7. RETIREMENT AND SEVERANCE BENEFITS
The Company and subsidiaries have the following defined benefit pension plans to provide pension 

benefits to substantially all employees:

•  Corporate Pension Fund (funded defined benefit pension plan)

•  Retirement and Severance Benefit Plan (unfunded defined benefit pension plan)

The funded status of the Company and subsidiaries’ pension plans as of March 31, 2012 and 

2011 are summarized as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2012 2011 2012

Projected benefit obligation ¥(115,358) ¥(109,693) $(1,403,552)

Plan assets at fair value 63,189 62,511 768,814

Funded status (52,169) (47,182) (634,738)

Unrecognized actuarial loss 30,939 27,819 376,434

Unrecognized prior service cost (3,425) (4,096) (41,676)

Amounts recognized in the consolidated 
balance sheets ¥ (24,655) ¥ (23,459) $  (299,980)

Amounts recognized in the consolidated  
balance sheets consist of:

Investments and other assets—other assets ¥   1,921 ¥   2,864 $    23,373

Accured retirement and severance benefits (26,576) (26,323) (323,353)

¥ (24,655) ¥ (23,459) $  (299,980)

Net periodic benefit cost for the Company and subsidiaries’ pension plans for the years ended March 

31, 2012 and 2011 consisted of the following components:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2012 2011 2012

Service cost ¥ 4,084 ¥ 4,011 $ 49,694

Interest cost 2,653 2,731 32,277

Expected return on plan assets (1,691) (1,680) (20,577)

Amortization of unrecognized actuarial loss 3,314 3,073 40,316

Amortization of unrecognized prior service 
cost (507) (521) (6,157)

7,853 7,614 95,553

Other, net 168 156 2,034

¥ 8,021 ¥ 7,770 $ 97,587

Other, net includes contributions to defined contribution pension plan.

In addition to the cost above, extra retirement payments amounting to ¥2,064 million ($25,115 

thousand) and ¥506 million were recorded for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Actuarial assumptions used in accounting for the Company and subsidiaries’ plans are principally  

as follows:

2012 2011

Discount rates 1.9 – 2.1% 2.1–2.4%

Expected rate of return on plan assets 2.5% 2.5%

The programs described above do not cover directors and statutory auditors. To prepare for the 

payment of retirement benefits for directors and statutory auditors, some domestic consolidated 

subsidiaries recorded the amount payable at the balance sheet date based on their internal rules on 

retirement and severance benefits for directors and statutory auditors. At March 31, 2012 and 2011, 

such obligation recognized as accrued retirement and severance benefits amounted to ¥289 million 

($3,511 thousand) and ¥306 million, respectively.
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8. COMMON STOCK
Through May 1, 2006, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries were subjected to the Japanese 

Commercial Code (JCC). The JCC requires that at least 50% of the issue price of new shares be 

designated as stated capital, and proceeds in excess of amount designated as stated capital be 

credited to capital surplus.

On May 1, 2006, a new corporate law (the Law) became effective, which reformed and replaced 

the JCC with various revisions that would, for the most part, be applicable to events or transactions 

which occur on or after May 1, 2006 and for the fiscal years ending on or after May 1, 2006.

Authorized shares and issued and outstanding shares as of March 31, 2012 and 2011 are 

summarized as follows:

2012 2011

Authorized shares 350,000,000 350,000,000

Issued and outstanding shares 137,738,730 137,738,730

9. LEGAL RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS
The JCC requires an amount equal to at least 10% of appropriations of retained earnings to be paid 

in cash be appropriated as a legal reserve until total of capital surplus and legal reserve equals 25% 

of stated capital. In addition to reduction of a deficit and transfer to stated capital, either capital 

surplus or legal reserve may be available for dividends by resolution of the shareholders’ meeting to 

the extent that the amount of total capital surplus and legal reserve exceeds 25% of stated capital.

The Law requires that an amount equal to 10% of dividends must be appropriated as a legal 

reserve (of retained earnings) or as additional paid-in capital (of capital surplus) depending on the 

equity account charged upon the payment of such dividends until the total of aggregate amount of 

legal reserve and additional paid-in capital equals 25% of the common stock. Under the Law, the 

total amount of additional paid-in capital and legal reserve may be reversed without limitation of 

threshold that the JCC provided. The Law also provides that common stock, legal reserve, additional 

paid-in capital, other capital surplus and retained earnings can be transferred among the accounts 

under certain conditions upon resolution of the shareholders’ meeting.

Cash dividends and legal reserve reflected as appropriations of retained earnings during the years 

ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 represent dividends paid out during those periods and the related 

appropriations to the legal reserve. The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not 

include any provision for the dividend of ¥10.00 ($0.12) per share approved at the Board of Directors’ 

meeting held on May 24, 2012, aggregating ¥1,375 million ($16,734 thousand) in respect of the year 

ended March 31, 2012.

10. ASSETS PLEDGED AS COLLATERAL
Assets pledged as collateral at March 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2012 2011 2012

Cash ¥  – ¥ 5 $   –

Investments in securities 22 22 262

¥22 ¥27 $262

Related debts secured with the above assets at March 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2012 2011 2012

Trade accounts payable ¥11 ¥15 $139
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11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At March 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company and its subsidiaries are contingently liable for  

following amounts:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2012 2011 2012

Export bills discounted ¥ 15 ¥ 22 $  183

Trade notes receivable endorsed to suppliers 61 56 743

Guarantees given for employees’ housing 
loans 418 509 5,083

¥494 ¥587 $6,009

12.  TRADE NOTES RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE MATURED AT FISCAL 
YEAR-END

When the fiscal year-end falls on a holiday for financial institutions, the Company accounts for trade 

notes receivable and payable with maturity date being the fiscal year-end as if they were settled on 

the maturity date.

The amounts are as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2012 2012

Trade notes receivable ¥1,240 $15,091

Trade notes payable ¥   36 $   442

13. AMOUNT PER SHARE
The Company adopted the “Accounting Standard for Earnings per Share” issued by the Accounting 

Standards Board of Japan as described in Note 1(p). The Company has no potentially dilutive 

securities for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011.

Net income per share computed for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Number of shares

2012 2011

Weighted average number of shares on which basic net income 
per share is calculated 137,539,353 137,540,985

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2012 2011 2012

Net income ¥14,265 ¥17,752 $173,558

Net income attributable to common 
shareholders 14,265 17,752 173,558

Yen U.S. dollars

2012 2011 2012

Net income per share:

Basic ¥103.71 ¥129.07 $1.26

Net assets per share computed as of March 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Number of shares

2012 2011

Number of shares on which net assets per share is calculated 137,539,109 137,539,603
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Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2012 2011 2012

Total net assets ¥253,012 ¥242,845 $3,078,377

Amounts deducted from total net assets:

Minority interests 237 134 2,889

Net assets attributable to common 
shareholders ¥252,775 ¥242,711 $3,075,488

Yen U.S. dollars

2012 2011 2012

Net assets per share ¥1,837.84 ¥1,764.66 $22.36

14. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ExPENSES
Research and development expenses charged to income for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 

2011 amounted to ¥23,556 million ($286,608 thousand) and ¥20,774 million, respectively.

15. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The notional amounts, estimated fair values and unrealized gains and losses of the derivative financial 

instruments for which deferral hedged accounting has not been applied for the years ended March 

31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Millions of yen

2012 2011

Notional 
amounts

Estimated 
fair values

Unrealized 
losses

Notional 
amounts

Estimated 
fair values

Unrealized 
gains 

(losses)

Forward exchange 
contracts:

To sell foreign currency ¥15,685 ¥(186) ¥(186) ¥14,529 ¥153 ¥153

To buy foreign currency 5,045 (90) (90) 4,526 (20) (20)

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2012

Notional 
amounts

Estimated 
fair values

Unrealized 
losses

Forward exchange 
contracts:

To sell foreign currency $190,840 $(2,258) $(2,258)

To buy foreign currency 61,377 (1,095) (1,095)

The notional amounts, estimated fair values and unrealized gains and losses of the derivative financial 

instruments for which deferral hedged accounting has been applied for the years ended March 31, 

2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Millions of yen

2012 2011

Notional 
amounts

Estimated 
fair values

Unrealized 
losses

Notional 
amounts

Estimated 
fair values

Unrealized 
gains 

(losses)

Forward exchange 
contracts:

To sell foreign currency ¥23,398 ¥(386) ¥(386) ¥24,778 ¥ 40 ¥ 40

To buy foreign currency 4,912 (54) (54) 2,509 (11) (11)

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2012

Notional 
amounts

Estimated 
fair values

Unrealized 
losses

Forward exchange 
contracts:

To sell foreign currency $284,677 $(4,695) $(4,695)

To buy foreign currency 59,766 (654) (654)
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16. LEASE
As lessee:

Finance leases, whose contracted period began on or before March 31, 2008, except for those 

where the legal title of the underlying property would be transferred from the lessor to the lessee at 

the end of the lease term, were accounted for as operating lease.

For the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, lease payments of ¥125 million ($1,527 thousand) 

and ¥336 million, respectively, under such finance leases were charged to income. On a pro forma 

basis, leased property, lease obligation and related expenses, with assumed capitalization of such 

finance leases are as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2012 2011 2012

Leased property:

Equipment and other, at cost ¥281 ¥847 $3,414

Less accumulated depreciation (Note a) 234 684 2,843

Net equipment and other ¥ 47 ¥163 $  571

Depreciation expense (Note a) ¥115 ¥312 $1,404

Interest expense (Note b) 3 6 31

Lease Obligation:

Within one year ¥ 26 ¥ 99 $  320

After one year 26 67 310

¥ 52 ¥166 $  630

Notes: a.  Leased property is depreciated over the lease term by the straight-line method with no  
residual value.

 b.  Excess of total lease payments over the assumed acquisition costs of the leased property is 
regarded as interest and is allocated to each period using the interest method.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating lease arrangements as of March 31, 2012 
and 2011 are ¥445 million ($5,416 thousand) and ¥446 million due within one year, ¥543 million ($6,607 
thousand) and ¥787 million due after one year, respectively.

17. GAIN ON INSURANCE ADJUSTMENT
Due to the Great East Japan Earthquake etc.

18. INSURANCE INCOME
Profit insurance due to the Great East Japan Earthquake etc.

19. BUSINESS STRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT ExPENSES
Business structure improvement expenses are caused by the business structural reform of the Com-

pany and its consolidated subsidiaries.

Breakdown: Premium severance payments ¥1,650 million ($20,080 thousand)

  Impairment losses due to integration of  

business location (*1)    437 million (  5,310 thousand)

  Relocation expenses due to integration of  

business location     43 million (    524 thousand)

 Total ¥2,130 million ($25,914 thousand)

(*1) Impairment losses

Location Purpose Type Impairment Loss

Shonan Division Assets held for disposal Buildings, structures, 
machinery and equipment, 
tools, furniture and fixtures, 
land, software

¥430 million
($5,226 thousand)

Saitama Division Assets held for disposal Buildings, machinery and 
equipment, tools, furniture 
and fixtures

¥  7 million
($84 thousand)

Total ¥437 million
($5,310 thousand)

Regarding assets held for disposal, the difference between the net selling price and their book value 

has been written off as expenses. This was because they are no longer serving their previous usage 

and recovery of investment cost can no longer be expected due to the decision to dispose them.
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20. LOSS ON DISASTER
The loss due to the Great East Japan Earthquake is recognized as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2012 2011 2012

Loss on inventories ¥   63 ¥   591 $   771

Loss on fixed assets 96 648 1,163

Total 159 1,239 1,934

Inspection and removal costs 500 340 6,082

Restoration costs 253 755 3,080

Fixed costs in the period when factory  
operations were suspended – 1,193 –

Total loss due to the disaster (gross amount) 912 3,527 11,096

Insurance recoveries (332) (1,962) (4,040)

Total loss due to the disaster (net amount) ¥  580 ¥ 1,565 $ 7,056

Inspection and removal costs, and restoration costs include the provision for loss on disaster.

21. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
When determining indicators of impairment, the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries classify 

the assets according to the categories used for their managerial accounting based on business units.

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012, the Company recognized impairment losses for the 

following assets:

Location Purpose Type Impairment Loss

Head office Assets held for disposal Buildings, structures, tools, 
furniture and fixtures, land

¥975 million
($11,858 thousand)

Naka Division Manufacturing facilities for 
inspection equipment

Machinery and equipment, 
tools, furniture and fixtures 

¥48 million
($585 thousand)

Manufacturing facilities for 
analysis equipment: 
electron microscope, etc.

Tools, furniture and fixtures ¥31 million
($378 thousand)

Manufacturing facilities for 
biotechnology equipment

Machinery and equipment, 
tools, furniture and fixtures, 
software 

¥42 million
($507 thousand)

Assets held for disposal Buildings, structures,  
machinery and equipment, 
tools, furniture and fixtures

¥31 million
($378 thousand)

Kasado Division Assets held for disposal Machinery and equipment ¥69 million
($840 thousand)

Total ¥1,196 million
($14,546 thousand)

The book value of the assets has been reduced to the recoverable amount measured based on 

the present value of the expected future cash flows resulting from the use of the assets due to the 

decline in profitability stemming from the severe downturn in market conditions in the case of assets 

for manufacturing facilities for inspection equipment, manufacturing facilities for analysis equipment: 

electron microscope, etc., and manufacturing facilities for biotechnology equipment. Due to the lack 

of prospects for generating sufficient cash flow in the future, the book value of manufacturing facilities 

for inspection equipment has been fully reduced and of manufacturing facilities for analysis equip-

ment: electron microscope, etc. and manufacturing facilities for biotechnology equipment has been 

reduced to recoverable amount. These reduced amounts have been written off as impairment losses. 

The recoverable value of these assets has been measured based on utility value that was calculated 

using the discount rate of 7.0%. Regarding assets held for disposal, the difference between the net 

selling price and their book value has been written off as impairment losses. This was because they 

are no longer serving their previous usage and recovery of investment cost can no longer be 

expected due to the decision to dispose them.
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In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011, the Company recognized impairment losses for the 

following assets:

Location Purpose Type Impairment Loss

Head office Assets held for disposal Deferred charges ¥153 million

Head office, etc. Assets for IT system Buildings, tools, furniture and 
fixtures, software

¥283 million

Naka Division Manufacturing facilities 
for inspection equipment

Machinery and equipment, 
tools, furniture and fixtures, 
software

¥402 million

Manufacturing facilities 
for analysis equipment: 
electron microscope, 
etc.

Machinery and equipment, 
automotive  equipment, tools, 
furniture and fixtures, patent, 
software

¥340 million

Manufacturing facilities 
for biotechnology 
equipment

Tools, furniture and fixtures, 
patent, software, deferred 
charges

¥146 million

Assets held for disposal Buildings, tools, furniture and 
fixtures

¥2 million

Total ¥1,326 million

The book value of the assets has been reduced to the recoverable amount measured based on 

the present value of the expected future cash flows resulting from the use of the assets due to the 

decline in profitability stemming from the severe downturn in market conditions in the case of assets 

for IT system, manufacturing facilities for inspection equipment, manufacturing facilities for analysis 

equipment: electron microscope, etc., and manufacturing facilities for biotechnology equipment. The 

book value of assets for IT system has been partially written off as impairment losses due to the lack 

of prospects for generating sufficient cash flow in the future. The recoverable value of these assets 

has been measured based on utility value that was calculated using the discount rate of 7.5%. 

Regarding manufacturing facilities for inspection equipment, manufacturing facilities for analysis 

equipment: electron microscope, etc., and manufacturing facilities for biotechnology equipment, the 

book value has been fully written off as impairment losses due to the lack of prospects for generating 

sufficient cash flow in the future. Regarding assets held for disposal, the difference between the net 

selling price and their book value has been written off as impairment losses. This was because they 

are no longer serving their previous usage and recovery of investment cost can no longer be 

expected due to the decision to dispose them.

22. ENVIRONMENTAL ExPENSES
The expense of the disposal of polluted soil for the new building construction at the Naka division of 

the Company is recorded.

23. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
The following table presents reclassification and tax effects allocated to each component of other 

comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2012:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2012 2012

Net unrealized holding gains on securities:

Amount arising during the year ¥ 419 $  5,099

Reclassification adjustments (102) (1,236)

Amount before tax effect 317 3,863

Tax effect 166 2,018

Total ¥ 483 $  5,881

Net deferred gains (losses) on hedges:

Amount arising during the year ¥ 457 $  5,566

Reclassification adjustments (934) (11,366)

Amount before tax effect (477) (5,800)

Tax effect 185 2,242

Total ¥(292) $ (3,558)

Foreign currency translation adjustments:

Amount arising during the year ¥(259) $ (3,154)

Total other comprehensive income ¥(68) $   (831)
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Overview
(a) Policy for Financial Instruments

When investing funds, the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries (the Group) focus first and 

foremost on the safety of principal and income, and also on ensuring proper liquidity. In financing, the 

Group limits procurement to the minimum amount necessary while maintaining appropriate liquidity. 

Derivative transactions are utilized mainly to mitigate the risk of changes in cash flow due to foreign 

currency fluctuations. The Group does not enter into speculative derivative transactions.

(b) Types of Financial Instruments and Related Risk

Trade notes and accounts receivable are exposed to the counterparty credit risks. Short-term 

investments and investments in securities, which are mainly comprised of bonds for the purpose of 

investment of funds, shares held for business promotion purposes and other investment of funds, are 

exposed to credit risk, market risk, and liquidity risk.

The majority of trade notes and accounts payable are due within one year.

Foreign currency-denominated transactions are exposed to the risk of changes in cash flows due 

to foreign currency fluctuations, and the Group enters into forward exchange contracts as hedging 

instruments against such risks. Forward exchange contracts are exposed to credit risk of losses due 

to the non-performance of contracts because of factors such as the bankruptcy of financial 

institutions, and market risk of losses due to market changes such as interest and foreign exchange 

rates. The forward exchange contracts into which the Group enters are primarily to hedge future risk 

of changes in cash flow due to foreign exchange fluctuations related to future foreign currency-

denominated monetary receivables and payables. Such future foreign currency-denominated 

transactions entail market risk due to cancellation or modification, but the Group has judged these 

risks to be limited in nature. Information regarding the method of hedge accounting, hedging 

instruments and hedged items, and hedging policy is described in Note 1(m).

(c) Risk Management System for Financial Instruments

1)  Management of Risk Related to Trade Notes and Accounts Receivable, and Trade Notes 

and Accounts Payable (Counterparties’ Non-performance of Contract, etc.)

Based on its credit management regulations, the Group manages risk by due date and balance for 

each counterparty, and monitors the credit status of its major counterparties continuously or  

as needed.

2) Management of Risk Related to Short-Term Investments and Investments in Securities

The Group establishes remaining periods and rating guidelines for bonds for the purpose of 

investment of funds, and manages risk by periodically checking the fair values and ratings. For shares 

held for business promotion purposes and other investment of funds, the Group periodically checks 

fair values and the financial condition of issuers.

3) Management of Liquidity Risk Related to Financing

The Group manages liquidity risk by creating a monthly cash management plan.

4) Management of Risk Related to Derivative Transactions

For derivative transactions, the Company deals with financial institutions with high credit ratings. 

Execution and management of derivative transactions are conducted through double checks and 

mutual checks by the Finance Department according to the Company’s internal regulations approved 

by the relevant executive. In management of the balance of forward exchange contracts, the 

Company regularly requests documents from financial institutions, and compares these with its own 

balances. The status of forward exchange contracts and positions of foreign currency-denominated 

monetary receivables and payables is reported to the officer in charge of finance in a timely manner.

The Company’s subsidiaries also enter into forward exchange contracts based on internal 

management rules, including risk management policies similar to those of the Company. The 

Company’s Finance Department receives regular reports on the status of forward exchange contracts 

and positions of foreign currency-denominated monetary receivables and payables from the 

subsidiaries, and confirms whether the management of the subsidiaries is being conducted in 

accordance with internal management regulations such as the risk management policy.

In addition, the Company’s Internal Auditing Division periodically checks the status of the 

Company’s subsidiaries’ observance of regulations and limits, the effectiveness and independence of 

risk management functions, and the reliability of reporting.
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(d) Supplementary Explanation of the Estimated Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair values of listed shares are based on market price, while the fair values of bonds are measured by 

the prices obtained from financial institutions. The forward exchange contracts into which the Group 

enters are for the purpose of hedging risk of changes in cash flow from foreign currency-denominated 

transactions and valuation gains or losses on derivative transactions offset with high degree of 

effectiveness valuation gains or losses generated by foreign currency-denominated monetary 

receivables and payables, which are the hedged items.

Estimated Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Carrying value of financial instruments on the consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2012 and 

2011 and unrealized gains and losses are shown in the following table. The following table does not 

include financial instruments for which it is extremely difficult to determine the fair value. (Please refer 

to Note 2 below.)

Millions of yen

2012

Carrying  
value

Estimated  
fair value

Unrealized  
gains (losses)

Assets:

Cash ¥ 23,293 ¥ 23,293 ¥ –

Trade notes and accounts receivable 130,038

Less allowance for doubtful receivables (*1) (1,451)

128,587 128,587 (0)

Deposits to Hitachi Group cash management fund 98,831 98,831 –

Short-term investments and investments in securities 11,559 11,559 –

¥262,270 ¥262,270 ¥(0)

Liabilities:

Trade notes and accounts payable ¥105,484 ¥105,484 ¥ –

¥105,484 ¥105,484 ¥ –

Derivatives transactions(*2):

Those to which hedge accounting is not applied ¥   (276) ¥   (276) ¥ –

Those to which hedge accounting is applied (440) (440) –

¥   (716) ¥   (716) ¥ –

Millions of yen

2011

Carrying  
value

Estimated  
fair value

Unrealized  
gains (losses)

Assets:

Cash ¥ 24,968 ¥ 24,968 ¥ –

Trade notes and accounts receivable 130,093

Less allowance for doubtful receivables (*1) (1,552)

128,541 128,541 (0)

Deposits to Hitachi Group cash management fund 80,609 80,609 –

Short-term investments and investments in securities 8,116 8,116 –

¥242,234 ¥242,234 ¥(0)

Liabilities:

Trade notes and accounts payable ¥ 94,920 ¥ 94,920 ¥ –

¥ 94,920 ¥ 94,920 ¥ –

Derivatives transactions (*2):

Those to which hedge accounting is not applied ¥    133 ¥    133 ¥ –

Those to which hedge accounting is applied 29 29 –

¥    162 ¥    162 ¥ –
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Trade Notes and Accounts Receivable

The fair value is based on the present value calculated by discounting receivables reflecting credit risk 

for each receivable categorized by time to maturity by an interest rate for the time to maturity.

Deposits to Hitachi Group Cash Management Fund

The fair value approximates the carrying amount because of the short-term nature. Thus, the carrying 

amount is used as fair value.

Short-Term Investments and Investments in Securities

While the fair values of listed shares are measured by quoted market prices, the fair values of bond 

securities are measured by the prices obtained from financial institutions.

Please refer to Note 4 for information regarding securities by holding purpose.

Liabilities

Trade Notes and Accounts Payable

The fair value approximates the carrying amount because of the short-item nature. Thus the carrying 

amount is used as fair value.

Derivative Transactions

Please refer to the Note 15.

2. Financial Instruments for Which It Is Extremely Difficult to Determine the Fair Value

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2012 2011 2012

Unlisted equity securities ¥78 ¥147 $953

Unlisted foreign bonds 0 0 2

Investments in limited investment partnerships 4 4 46

Because no quoted market price is available and it is extremely difficult to determine the fair value, 

the above financial instruments are not included in short-term investments and investments  

in securities.

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2012

Carrying  
value

Estimated  
fair value

Unrealized  
gains (losses)

Assets:

Cash $  283,402 $  283,402 $ –

Trade notes and accounts receivable 1,582,163

Less allowance for doubtful receivables (*1) (17,653)

1,564,510 1,564,508 (2)

Deposits to Hitachi Group cash management fund 1,202,473 1,202,473 –

Short-term investments and investments in securities 140,631 140,631 –

$3,191,016 $3,191,014 $(2)

Liabilities:

Trade notes and accounts payable $1,283,412 $1,283,412 $ –

$1,283,412 $1,283,412 $ –

Derivatives transactions (*2):

Those to which hedge accounting is not applied $   (3,353) $   (3,353) $ –

Those to which hedge accounting is applied (5,349) (5,349) –

$   (8,702) $   (8,702) $ –

*1: This represents allowance for doubtful receivables provided for trade notes and accounts receivable.
*2:  These represent net assets or liabilities arising from derivative transactions. The figures in parentheses 

indicate net liabilities.

Note:
1.  Method to Determine the Estimated Fair Value of Financial Instruments and Other 

Matters Related to Securities and Derivative Transactions

Assets

Cash

The fair value approximates the carrying amount because of the short-term nature. Thus, the carrying 

amount is used as fair value.
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3. Redemption Schedule for Receivables and Marketable Securities with Maturities at March 31, 2012 and 2011

Millions of yen

2012

Within 1 year After 1 year through 5 years After 5 years through 10 years Over 10 years

Cash ¥ 23,292 ¥    – ¥– ¥–

Trade notes and accounts receivable 129,985 53 – –

Deposits to Hitachi Group cash management fund 98,831 – – –

Short-term investments and investments in securities:

Corporate bonds 500 3,000 – –

Other 78 4 – –

¥252,686 ¥3,057 ¥– ¥–

Millions of yen

2011

Within 1 year After 1 year through 5 years After 5 years through 10 years Over 10 years

Cash ¥ 24,965 ¥  – ¥   – ¥–

Trade notes and accounts receivable 130,052 41 – –

Deposits to Hitachi Group cash management fund 80,609 – – –

Short-term investments and investments in securities:

Corporate bonds – – 500 –

Other 79 4 – –

¥235,705 ¥45 ¥500 ¥–

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2012

Within 1 year After 1 year through 5 years After 5 years through 10 years Over 10 years

Cash $  283,393 $     – $– $–

Trade notes and accounts receivable 1,581,516 647 – –

Deposits to Hitachi Group cash management fund 1,202,473 – – –

Short-term investments and investments in securities:

Corporate bonds 6,083 36,501 – –

Other 944 45 – –

$3,074,409 $37,193 $– $–
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25. SEGMENT INFORMATION
(a) Outline of Reportable Segments

The Company’s reportable segments are the constituent units of the Company for which separate 

financial information is available. These reportable segments are subject to periodic review by the 

Executive Committee to determine the allocation of management resources and evaluate  

business performance.

The Company’s Sales Divisions are segmented according to product, merchandise and service 

characteristics and housed in the Head Office. Each Sales Division is responsible for formulating a 

comprehensive strategy of domestic and overseas operations and developing business activities 

globally in their designated business domain.

The Company has five reportable segments: Electronic Device Systems, Fine Technology 

Systems, Science & Medical Systems, Industrial & IT Systems, and Advanced Industrial Products. 

These segments are designated from products, merchandise and services comprising the  

Sales Divisions.

The main products, merchandise and services of each reportable segment are as follows:

Electronic Device Systems

Manufacture, sales, and installation and maintenance services of semiconductor-related 

manufacturing equipment such as etching systems, CD-Measurement SEMs, inspection systems, die 

bonders, and surface mounting systems such as chip mounters.

Fine Technology Systems

Manufacture, sales, and installation and maintenance services of FPD manufacturing equipment, HD 

manufacturing equipment, railway inspection equipment, etc.

Science & Medical Systems

Manufacture, sales, and installation and maintenance services of various analytical instruments 

including mass spectrometers, nuclear magnetic resonance equipment, spectrophotometers, and 

chromatographs, and electron microscopes, biotechnology products and clinical analyzers.

Industrial & IT Systems

Sales of automated assembly systems for LIBs and other products, HDDs, power generation and 

transformation facilities, design and development solutions, videoconferencing systems and 

telecommunications equipment. Manufacture, sales, and installation and maintenance services of 

instruments and control systems, and related systems.

Advanced Industrial Products

Sales and other business activities in steel products, non-ferrous metal products, electronic materials 

and components for circuits, plastics, solar cell materials and components, automotive components, 

silicon wafers, optical telecommunications device materials and components, optical storage device 

materials and components, electronic components such as semiconductors, and oil products.

(b)  Method of computing the amounts of sales and income (loss), assets, liabilities,  

and other items by each reportable segment

Accounting procedures for business segment are almost the same as those described in “basis of 

presentation and summary of significant accounting policies.”

Segment income basically represents the income before income taxes and minority interests. 

Inter-segment transactions are based on the market price.

Corporate fixed assets are not included in the computation of segment assets, as they are not 

allocated to any segments. However, the depreciation of the corporate fixed assets is included in the 

computation of segment income, as it is a part of corporate expenses allocated to segments.
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(c)  Information about the amounts of sale and income (loss), assets, liabilities, and other items by reportable segment

Millions of yen

2012

Reportable Segment

Electronic Device 
Systems

Fine Technology 
Systems

Science & 
Medical Systems

Industrial & 
IT Systems

Advanced Industrial  
Products Total Others Total Adjustment Consolidated

Net Sales

External customers ¥102,106 ¥22,963 ¥145,994 ¥114,741 ¥259,194 ¥644,998 ¥   867 ¥645,865 ¥      – ¥645,865

Intersegment sales and transfers 280 16 1,061 6,946 2,022 10,325 3,810 14,135 (14,135) –

Total 102,386 22,979 147,055 121,687 261,216 655,323 ¥ 4,677 660,000 (14,135) 645,865

Segment income (loss) ¥  9,001 ¥ (8,258) ¥ 21,123 ¥  1,089 ¥    811 ¥ 23,766 ¥(1,140) ¥ 22,626 ¥  5,688 ¥ 28,314

Segment assets ¥ 63,679 ¥14,791 ¥ 62,997 ¥ 33,422 ¥ 71,710 ¥246,599 ¥ 1,611 ¥248,210 ¥193,952 ¥442,162

Segment liabilities 23,784 3,263 25,611 25,881 48,986 127,525 774 128,299 60,851 189,150

Depreciation and amortization ¥  3,133 ¥ 1,267 ¥  2,917 ¥    993 ¥    640 ¥  8,950 ¥   122 ¥  9,072 – ¥  9,072

Amortization of goodwill 229 – – – – 229 – 229 89 318

Interest income – – 345 – – 345 – 345 67 412

Interest expense 679 138 – 115 282 1,214 3 1,217 (1,148) 69

Impairment losses 127 – 93 – – 220 – 220 976 1,196

Increase in fixed assets and intangible fixed assets 3,772 669 6,408 376 393 11,618 207 11,825 1,845 13,670

Millions of yen

2011 

Reportable Segment

Electronic Device 
Systems

Fine Technology 
Systems

Science & 
Medical Systems

Industrial & 
IT Systems

Advanced Industrial  
Products Total Others Total Adjustment Consolidated

Net Sales

External customers ¥95,726 ¥38,683 ¥114,388 ¥110,108 ¥293,813 ¥652,718 ¥  713 ¥653,431 – ¥653,431

Intersegment sales and transfers 173 120 989 8,098 1,833 11,213 2,131 13,344 (13,344) –

Total 95,899 38,803 115,377 118,206 295,646 663,931 2,844 666,775 (13,344) 653,431

Segment income (loss) ¥10,436 ¥   951 ¥ 11,878 ¥    631 ¥  2,442 ¥ 26,338 ¥  (360) ¥ 25,978 ¥    139 ¥ 26,117

Segment assets ¥61,303 ¥28,200 ¥ 45,328 ¥ 36,755 ¥ 71,099 ¥242,685 ¥1,079 ¥243,764 ¥169,503 ¥413,267

Segment liabilities 19,901 8,578 16,220 24,140 49,554 118,393 911 119,304 51,118 170,422

Depreciation and amortization ¥ 2,906 ¥ 1,350 ¥  2,767 ¥  1,035 ¥    606 ¥  8,664 ¥  104 ¥  8,768 ¥    192 ¥  8,960

Amortization of goodwill 229 – – – – 229 – 229 96 325

Interest income – – 343 – – 343 – 343 (44) 299

Interest expense 713 246 – 146 257 1,362 3 1,365 (1,287) 78

Impairment losses 402 – 486 436 – 1,324 – 1,324 2 1,326

Increase in fixed assets and intangible fixed assets 2,867 373 2,180 638 214 6,272 84 6,356 1,650 8,006
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Thousands of U.S. dollars

2012

Reportable Segment

Electronic Device 
Systems

Fine Technology 
Systems

Science & 
Medical Systems

Industrial & 
IT Systems

Advanced Industrial  
Products Total Others Total Adjustment Consolidated

Net Sales

External customers $1,242,313 $  279,387 $1,776,299 $1,396,040 $3,153,599 $7,847,638 $  10,551 $7,858,189 $        – $7,858,189

Intersegment sales and transfers 3,405 198 12,913 84,515 24,595 125,626 46,360 171,986 (171,986) –

Total 1,245,718 279,585 1,789,212 1,480,555 3,178,194 7,973,264 56,911 8,030,175 (171,986) 7,858,189

Segment income (loss) $  109,509 $(100,473) $  257,006 $   13,255 $    9,863 $  289,160 $(13,870) $  275,290 $   69,209 $  344,499

Segment assets $  774,781 $  179,959 $  766,479 $  406,647 $  872,490 $3,000,356 $  19,597 $3,019,953 $2,359,796 $5,379,749

Segment liabilities 289,376 39,701 311,610 314,887 596,010 1,551,584 9,416 1,561,000 740,372 2,301,372

Depreciation and amortization $   38,114 $   15,415 $   35,492 $   12,080 $    7,784 $  108,885 $   1,496 $  110,381 $        – $  110,381

Amortization of goodwill 2,785 – – – – 2,785 – 2,785 1,088 3,873

Interest income – – 4,195 – – 4,195 – 4,195 814 5,009

Interest expense 8,261 1,678 – 1,395 3,434 14,768 45 14,813 (13,972) 841

Impairment losses 1,550 – 1,137 – – 2,687 – 2,687 11,859 14,546

Increase in fixed assets and intangible fixed assets 45,890 8,141 77,970 4,569 4,787 141,357 2,522 143,879 22,442 166,321

Notes: 1) Others are the business segments not included in the reportable segment, and they include indirect-support business.
 2)  Adjustment for depreciation and amortization in 2011 is depreciation in the period when factory operations were suspended.
 3)  Adjustments for amortization of goodwill, impairment losses, increase in fixed assets and intangible fixed assets are the amounts of corporate costs, which do not belong to any business segments.
 4)   Interest income and interest expense are offset against each other and the net amount is recognized for internal management purposes. 

The net amount includes the interests on intracompany loans payable. 
The adjustments for interest income and interest expense are mainly the amount for head office which does not belong to any business segments and reversal of interests on intracompany loans payable.
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(d)  Information about the difference between total amount of the reportable segments and 

the amount of the consolidated financial statements

Millions of yen 
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

Net Sales 2012 2011 2012

Reportable segment total ¥655,323 ¥663,931 $7,973,264

Others (other business segments) 4,677 2,844 56,911

Inter-segment transaction elimination (14,135) (13,344) (171,986)

Consolidated financial statements ¥645,865 ¥653,431 $7,858,189

Millions of yen 
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

Income 2012 2011 2012

Reportable segment total ¥23,766 ¥26,338 $289,160

Others (other business segments) (1,140) (360) (13,870)

Inter-segment transaction elimination (11) 28 (136)

Amortization of unallocated goodwill (89) (96) (1,088)

Reversal of interests on intracompany loans 
payable 810 946 9,856

Other adjustments 4,978 (739) 60,577

Income before income taxes and  
minority interests for the consolidated  
financial statements ¥28,314 ¥26,117 $344,499

Other adjustments are mainly selling, general and administrative expenses, and other income (expense), 
which do not belong to any business segments.

Millions of yen 
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

Assets 2012 2011 2012

Reportable segment total ¥246,599 ¥242,685 $3,000,356

Others (other business segments) 1,611 1,079 19,597

Inter-segment elimination (2,262) (2,114) (27,517)

Other adjustments 196,214 171,617 2,387,313

Consolidated financial statements ¥442,162 ¥413,267 $5,379,749

Other adjustments are mainly corporate assets which do not belong to any business segments.

Millions of yen 
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

Liabilities total 2012 2011 2012

Reportable segment total ¥127,525 ¥118,393 $1,551,584

Others (other business segments) 774 911 9,416

Inter-segment elimination (2,182) (2,049) (26,545)

Other adjustments 63,033 53,167 766,917

Consolidated financial statements ¥189,150 ¥170,422 $2,301,372

Other adjustments are mainly corporate liabilities which do not belong to any business segments.
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(e) Geographical information

Net sales to third parties for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 are grouped by country or 

area according to geographical classification as follows:

 Millions of yen

2012

Japan North America Europe China Asia Others Total

¥273,994 ¥83,040 ¥89,049 ¥93,618 ¥91,306 ¥14,858 ¥645,865

 Millions of yen

2011

Japan North America Europe China Asia Others Total

¥291,416 ¥58,464 ¥70,610 ¥96,015 ¥127,666 ¥9,260 ¥653,431

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2012

Japan North America Europe China Asia Others Total

$3,333,661 $1,010,343 $1,083,454 $1,139,045 $1,110,910 $180,776 $7,858,189

Net sales information above is based on customer location.

(f) Information about the unamortized balances of goodwill

The unamortized balances of goodwill as of March 31, 2012 and 2011 by reportable segment are 

summarized as follows:

Millions of yen

2012

Electronic  
Device  

Systems

Fine  
Technology 

Systems

Science & 
Medical  

Systems
Industrial & 
IT Systems

Advanced  
Industrial  
Products Others

Elimination/ 
Corporate Total

¥687 – – – – – ¥89 ¥776

Millions of yen

2011

Electronic  
Device  

Systems

Fine  
Technology 

Systems

Science & 
Medical  

Systems
Industrial & 
IT Systems

Advanced  
Industrial  
Products Others

Elimination/ 
Corporate Total

¥916 – – – – – ¥179 ¥1,095

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2012

Electronic  
Device  

Systems

Fine  
Technology 

Systems

Science & 
Medical  

Systems
Industrial & 
IT Systems

Advanced  
Industrial  
Products Others

Elimination/ 
Corporate Total

$8,356 – – – – – $1,088 $9,444

Amortization of goodwill included in the elimination/corporate relates to goodwill recognized when Hitachi 
High Technologies America, Inc. acquired of the stocks owned by Hitachi America, Ltd., a subsidiary of 
Hitachi, Ltd. on March 31, 2008.
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26. MATERIAL SUBSEqUENT EVENTS
Material subsequent event for the year ended March 31, 2012 is as follows.

Acquisition and Subsequent Consolidation
The Company has reached a basic agreement with Seiko Instruments Inc. (SII) to acquire all of the 

shares of its wholly owned subsidiary SII NanoTechnology Inc. (SII NanoTech) on May 24, 2012.

(a) Reasons for the acquisition

The Company leverages its own world-leading technology, and global sales capability and network to 

promote business. Guided by its corporate vision of “Becoming a global top in high-tech solutions,” 

the Company has formulated its Long-term Management Strategy (CS11: Corporate Strategy 2011), 

and is aggressively promoting business development in growth fields. In this context, Science & 

Medical Systems, one of the Company’s in-house product divisions, is pursuing a three-pronged 

growth strategy: (1) Reinforce and augment core technologies, (2) Enter new and growth markets, 

and (3) Strengthen the competitiveness and lineup of general-purpose analytical instruments.

SII NanoTech, for its part, is a company with a history in the development, manufacture and sale 

of competitive products in analytical and measuring instruments and other cutting-edge fields, 

grounded in the management philosophy of providing its customers solutions and contributing to 

social progress through the pursuit of proprietary technology.

SII NanoTech’s operations are highly compatible with and complementary to the Company’s own 

business. Consequently, the Company determined that the conversion of SII NanoTech into a wholly 

owned subsidiary has the potential to enhance its own core technologies, particularly in X-rays, ther-

mal analysis, ion optics, and physical measurement technologies. The move is also expected to 

strengthen the Company’s business portfolio through the addition of products to the lineup.

This agreement is targeted to create synergies with Science & Medical Systems’ manufacturing, 

sales and services, while simultaneously launching cutting-edge applications, in a bid to further 

enhance competitiveness and enter new and growth markets.

(b) The name of acquisition counterparty

Seiko Instruments Inc.

(c) Overview of the subsidiary to be transferred

1) Name: SII NanoTechnology Inc.

2)  Business lines: Development, manufacture and sale of analytic, measurement and obser-

vation instruments

3) Capital: 100 million yen

(d) Schedule

1) Conclusion of the basic agreement: May 24, 2012

2) Conclusion of the share transfer agreement (tentative): Jul. 25, 2012

3) Date of share transfer (tentative): Oct. 1, 2012

(e) Number of shares acquired, acquisition price and shareholding after acquisition

1) Number of shares acquired: 60,000 shares

2) Acquisition price: Undecided

3) Ownership percentage of shareholdings after acquisition: 100%

(f) Future outlook

Discussions are ongoing regarding the specific terms and conditions of the share transfer pursuant to 

the basic agreement. However, the share acquisition is expected to have only a negligible impact on 

the Company’s consolidated business performance.
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Investor Information
(As of March 31, 2012)

Share Price and Total Volume
(¥) (Thousands of shares)

2011/04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 2012/01 02 030
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Major Shareholders

Name
Number of 

shares
Percentage of 
total equity (%)

Hitachi, Ltd. 71,135,619 51.64

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust Account) 6,698,400 4.86

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account) 4,388,800 3.18

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account 9G) 2,818,600 2.04

Hitachi High-Technologies Corp.’s Shareholding 
Association 2,333,336 1.69

NOMURA BANK (LUXEMBOURG) S.A. S/A NOMURA 
MULTI CURRENCY JP STOCK LEADERS FD 2,279,600 1.65

NIPPONVEST 1,500,000 1.08

RBC DEXIA INVESTOR SERVICES BANK A/C DUB 
NON RESIDENT/DOMESTIC RATE 1,336,802 0.97

THE BANK OF NEW YORK, TREATY JASDEC ACCOUNT 1,223,173 0.88

The Nomura Trust and Banking Co., Ltd. (Trust Account) 1,203,200 0.87

Type of Shareholders

Number of 
Shareholders

Percentage 
of total equity 

(%)
Number of Shares 

(shares)

Percentage 
of total equity 

(%)

Government and 
Municipality

0 0.0 0 0.0

Securities firms 29 0.4 713,413 0.5

Financial institutions 39 0.5 21,146,810 15.4

Other domestic 
corporation, etc.

133 1.6 72,878,412 52.9

Foreign corporation, etc. 349 4.3 32,549,481 23.6

Individuals 7,580 93.2 10,450,614 7.6

Total 8,130 100.0 137,738,730 100.0

Corporate Data

Date of Establishment
April 12, 1947

Paid-in Capital
¥7,938 million

Number of Employees
10,340

Stock Overview

Number of Authorized Shares
350,000,000 (Authorized)

Number of Common Shares
137,738,730 (Issued and 
Outstanding)

Annual Shareholders’ Meeting
June

Stock Exchange Listings
Tokyo Stock Exchange,  
First Section;

Osaka Securities Exchange,  
First Section

Independent Auditors
Ernst & Young ShinNihon

Number of Shareholders
8,130

Transfer Agent
Tokyo Securities Transfer Agent Co., 
Ltd.

Office of the Transfer Agent
6-2, Otemachi 2-chome,  
Chiyoda-ku,Tokyo 100-0004, Japan

Investor Information

 Share Price (Left)    Total Volume (Right)
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24-14, Nishi-shimbashi 1-chome, Minato-ku,
Tokyo 105-8717, Japan
Tel : +81-3-3504-7111
Fax : +81-3-3504-7123
URL : www.hitachi-hitec.com/global

CONTACT
Investor Relations Group
Corporate Communications Department
CSR Division
Tel : +81-3-3504-5138
Fax : +81-3-3504-7827
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